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Chairman’s Statement
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On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”), |
would like to present the annual report of G-Vision
International (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the financial year ended
31 March 2018.

RESULTS

rEBEEZE-_ZT—N\F=ZA=+—HILHF
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The audited consolidated loss attributable to the
shareholders of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2018 was approximately HK$8.9 million. Loss per share
based on 1,946,314,108 ordinary shares in issue
amounted to HK$0.46 cents.

g DIVIDEND
EFCLRARATERREHE T —\F The Board has resolved not to recommend the payment

A=t ALFEZEARBERE (=
T—LFE) -

£ o)

of a final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2018
(2017: Nil).

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
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G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAT

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group recorded
consolidated revenue of approximately HK$86.9 million,
representing a decrease of approximately HK$1.4 million
or 1.6% from last year’'s consolidated revenue of
approximately HK$88.3 million. The net loss for the year
amounted to approximately HK$8.9 million compared to
last year’s net loss of approximately HK$9.0 million.

The Group’s restaurant business continued to be the
major contributor to the Group’s revenue for the year
under review. The drop in revenue by approximately
HK$1.4 million compared to the last corresponding
period was mainly attributable to the closure of the Tsim
Sha Tsui branch for three weeks in April 2017 for
kitchen maintenance and upgrading works. Revenue
contributed by the Cheung Sha Wan Plaza branch,
remained relatively stable.

Despite the drop in revenue, the Group was able to
further improve the gross profit margin. The Group
would strive to maintain the effectiveness of cost control
measures of food materials while maintaining the food
quality.

2017/18 Annual Report %R
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PROSPECTS
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The restaurant business will continue to be the core
business of the Group. It will continue to provide a
stable source of revenue and remains the major
contributor to revenue. The Group has been actively
seeking suitable investment opportunities for business
diversification. The Group will explore into different
industry sectors so as to expand and diversify the scope
of the Group’s business.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
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I would like to express my gratitude to the management
and staff members of the Group for their dedication and
invaluable efforts and contributions to the Group during
the year.

Cheng Hop Fai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 June 2018
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
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For the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group recorded
consolidated revenue of approximately HK$86.9 million,
representing a decrease of 1.6% from previous year’s
revenue of approximately HK$88.3 million.

The Group recorded a net loss of approximately HK$8.9
million for the year under review compared to a net loss

of approximately HK$9.0 million for the previous year.

BUSINESS REVIEW
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For the restaurant operation, excluding the loss in
revenue during the three weeks renovation period of the
Tsim Sha Tsui branch in April 2017, the overall
performance was on previous year's level and there was
a slight improvement in the gross profit margin by
0.4%.

The Group’s result was negatively impacted by the loss
in revenue during the renovation period which resulted
in a loss of profit margin of approximately HK$1.0
million and an increase in repair and maintenance costs
of approximately HK$0.5 million. The net loss for the
Group had improved by approximately HK$0.1 million
for the year under review.

The increase in staff costs by approximately HK$1.3
million was mainly attributable to the 30,000,000 share
options granted to the Group’s directors on 23 October
2017. The fair value of the stock options amounted to
approximately HK$2.9 million, of which approximately
HK$1.5 million was recognised as share-based payment
staff expenses for the year ended 31 March 2018 in
accordance with the vesting conditions of the stock
options granted.

The positive impact from the foreign exchange
movement of approximately HK$0.2 million; the reversal
of the impairment losses of approximately HK$0.1
million for the Group’s available-for-sale investments as
well as the decrease in rental costs of approximately
HK$0.6 million all contributed to the reduction in net
loss for the Group.

2017/18 Annual Report %R
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
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The Group’s cash and bank balances (including pledged
bank deposits and short-term bank deposits) amounted
to approximately HK$88.6 million as at 31 March 2018.
As the Group had no bank borrowings, the Group’s
gearing ratio was zero as at 31 March 2018 and 31
March 2017.

With the cash generated from the Group’s operations in
its ordinary course of business and the existing unutilised
banking and credit facilities, the directors consider that
the Group has sufficient working capital for its
operations.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Most of the Group’s sales, purchases, cash and bank
balances were denominated in Hong Kong dollars. The
Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily
through certain bank deposits and available-for-sale
investments which are denominated in Renminbi and
United States Dollar. The management would closely
monitor such risk and would consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had approximately 157
staff. Total staff costs including directors’ emoluments
amounted to approximately HK$34.9 million (31 March
2017: HK$33.7 million) for the year under review.

Review of the employees’ remuneration packages is
normally conducted annually and as required from time
to time. The salary and benefit levels of the Group's
employees are competitive and individual performance is
rewarded through the Group’s bonus scheme. Other
benefits including medical coverage and mandatory
provident fund scheme are also provided to employees.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BHNEREEERAR
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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BUSINESS MODEL AND STRATEGY
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The Group strives to generate positive return to preserve
values of the shareholders through its sustainable
business development. For the Group’s traditional
business, the Group would try to seek growth and
higher returns by offering more innovative products or
services to customers, to implement more stringent cost
control and to apply and manage resources as effectively
as possible. In order to further enhance the value of the
Group and to achieve higher returns to the shareholders,
the longer term approach is to expand the income
source through business diversification. The aim is to
maximise the overall returns to shareholders in the long
run by identifying and selecting new business
opportunities which are of great potential and include
them in the Group’s existing business portfolio.

OUTLOOK

The restaurant business will continue to serve as our
core operation. However, the operating environment for
the Group’s restaurant operation still remains
challenging. The Group will continue to monitor its
operating costs cautiously given the higher rentals and
increasing food and staff costs. The Group reviews and
revises its business strategies on a regular basis with the
aim to better position itself to meet the challenges
ahead and to capitalize any future acquisition and
strategic investment opportunities as they arise.

2017/18 Annual Report %R
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The Board acknowledges the importance and benefits of
good corporate governance and strives to manage the
Company and the business in accordance with the
guidelines of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Stock Exchange”) for effective corporate
governance emphasizing transparency, fairness, integrity
and accountability.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE
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The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance
Code (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) as its own corporate
governance code. The Company has complied with the
code provisions set out in the Code throughout the year
ended 31 March 2018 except for code provision A.2.1 in
respect of the role separation of the chairman and the
chief executive; code provision A.4.1 in respect of the
service term of non-executive directors (“NEDs”) and
code provision D.1.4 in respect of the letters of
appointment for directors.

Code provision D.1.4 sets out that issuers should have
formal letters of appointment for directors setting out
the key terms and conditions of their appointment. The
Company did not have formal letters of appointment for
certain directors. All of the directors of the Company
are, however, required to refer to the guidelines set out
in “A Guide on Directors’ Duties” issued by the
Companies Registry and “Guidelines for Directors” and
“Guide for Independent Non-Executive Directors”
published by the Hong Kong Institute of Directors in
performing their duties and responsibilities as directors
of the Company. In the opinion of the directors, this
meets the objective of the code provision D.1.4.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BHNEREEERAR
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Corporate Governance Report
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
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The Company has adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules as its own code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the directors. Following specific enquiry
by the Company, all the directors confirmed that they
have complied with the required standards as set out in
the Model Code during the year ended 31 March 2018.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

EESRANERTEST N =_RB LI
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The Board currently comprises four executive directors
and three independent non-executive directors
("INEDs"):

Executive Directors

CHENG Hop Fai (Chairman and Managing Director)
CHENG Pak Ming, Judy

CHENG Pak Man, Anita

CHENG Pak Lai, Lily

Independent Non-Executive Directors

LEUNG Tai Chiu
LAW Toe Ming
MARK Yiu Tong, William

Ms. Cheng Pak Ming, Judy, Ms. Cheng Pak Man, Anita
and Ms. Cheng Pak Lai, Lily are sisters and are daughters
of Mr. Cheng Hop Fai, the chairman and managing
director. Save as aforesaid, the Board members have no
financial, business, family or other material relationship
with each other.

2017/18 Annual Report %R



52 (&)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
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During the year ended 31 March 2018, there were six
Board meetings and one general meeting held.
Individual attendance of each of the Board members is
as follows:

HE =
Attendance

Exg BRRKE

Board General
EEpE Name of Director Meeting Meeting
85 1= CHENG Hop Fai 3/6 1/1
2 5 B CHENG Pak Ming, Judy 3/6 1/1
EHH CHENG Pak Man, Anita 3/6 171
BB CHENG Pak Lai, Lily 3/6 1/1
RESHE LEUNG Tai Chiu 6/6 0/1
7 38 B LAW Toe Ming 6/6 11
BR= MARK Yiu Tong, William 6/6 1/1
EEeRELAKBEET Y A+ Iﬂﬂ The members of the Board are experienced individuals
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implementing the Group’s strategies and policies,
monitoring the performance of the Group and reviewing
the corporate governance practices. The mix of
professional skills and experience of the INEDs is an
important element in the proper functioning of the
Board. Their participation in Board and committee
meetings brings independent judgment and helps to
ensure that adequate checks and balances are provided
and that the interests of all shareholders are taken into
account. Directors have full access to appropriate
business documents and information about the Group
on a timely basis. The Directors can also obtain
independent professional advice at the Group’s expense
if they require it. The Board delegates the day-to-day
operation and administration to the management.

The Company has complied with rules 3.10(1) and (2) of
the Listing Rules in maintaining at all times sufficient
number of INEDs on the Board including an INED with
professional accounting and financial qualifications. The
Company has complied with rule 3.10A since 1
December 2012 and has INEDs representing at least
one-third of the Board. The Company considers all of
the INEDs are independent and has received from each
INED an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BHNEREEERAR
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preparation of financial statements of the Group that
give a true and fair view of the Group’s financial
position and are in accordance with applicable
accounting standards and statutory rules and guidelines.
The Board is not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue on a
going concern basis. The Company has also received a
statement by the external auditor of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
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The Board recognizes its overall responsibility for the
establishment, maintenance and review of the risk
management and internal control systems that provide
reasonable assurance on the reliability and integrity of
financial and operational information, effective and
efficient operations, safeguarding of assets and
compliance with laws and regulations. Such systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

The Group’s risk management and internal control
systems are based on a set of policies, rules and
guidelines as outlined in the Group’s internal control
manual and governed by the following types of control
principles:

a. Organization — to have clearly defined line of
responsibility and delegation

b. Segregation of duties — to reduce risk of intentional
manipulation or error

c.  Physical Control — to restrict unauthorized access to
all kinds of assets

d. Authorization and Approval — to have clearly
defined limits for authorizations

e. Arithmetical and Accounting — to ensure accuracy
of transactional records

f.  Personnel — to have qualified staff to perform
day-to-day duties

g. Supervision — to observe and closely monitor, to
identify and report on control weaknesses

h. Management - to maintain overall controls; to
manage and mitigate significant risks and to
highlight significant matters to the Board and the
audit committee

2017/18 Annual Report %R
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(Continued)
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The Company has adopted the “Guidelines on Disclosure
of Inside Information” issued by the Securities and
Futures Commission as its own guidelines in handling
and dissemination of inside information. Unauthorized
use of confidential information is strictly prohibited.

The Board through the executive management team and
the audit committee had conducted an annual review on
the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group and considered that the systems in place are
adequate and effective.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
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Code provision A.2.1 sets out that the roles of the
chairman and the chief executive should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual.
Currently, Mr. Cheng Hop Fai assumes the role of both
the chairman and the managing director (equivalent to
the role of a chief executive) of the Company. The Board
considers that such arrangement will not result in undue
concentration of power and is, at this stage, conducive
to the efficient formulation and implementation of the
Group’s strategies thus allowing the Group to develop
its business more effectively.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
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LZERBIBEARR Z A RMAEGRER
- WEEMRE  HWEFAETAALUE
ZEZ-
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Code provision A.4.1 stipulates that NEDs should be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. The
INEDs are not appointed for a specific term. This
constitutes a deviation from code provision A.4.1.
However, as all the INEDs are subject to retirement by
rotation at the annual general meetings of the Company
at least once every three years in accordance with the
Company’s Bye-laws, in the opinion of the directors, this
meets the objective of the code provision A.4.1.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BHNEREEERAR
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING
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Code provision A.6.5 stipulates that all directors should
participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure
that their contribution to the Board remains informed
and relevant. The Company had received from each of
the directors a record of training they received during
the year ended 31 March 2018. A summary of such
training is listed as follows:

EIER
Name of Director Type of training
Executive Director
CHENG Hop Fai A B
CHENG Pak Ming, Judy A B
CHENG Pak Man, Anita A, B
CHENG Pak Lai, Lily A, B
Independent Non-Executive Director
LEUNG Tai Chiu A B
LAW Toe Ming A, B
MARK Yiu Tong, William A B

A:  Attending training courses and/or seminars, conferences,

workshops or forums

B:  Reading journals and updates relevant to the Company’s

MR EA business or directors’ duties and responsibilities
G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED B EREEERA R 2017/18 Annual Report %k
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
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The Company has established a remuneration committee
since 14 July 2005. The principal function of the
remuneration committee is to make recommendations to
the Board on the remuneration packages of executive
directors, NEDs and senior management. The terms of
reference of the remuneration committee adopted on 23
March 2012 are consistent with the code provisions set
out in the Code. During the year ended 31 March 2018,
the remuneration committee comprised the three INEDs,
namely, Mr. Law Toe Ming (chairman), Mr. Leung Tai
Chiu and Mr. Mark Yiu Tong, William. During the year
ended 31 March 2018, the remuneration committee
held two meetings to review and make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of the directors with reference to the level of
responsibilities of the individual director, the scope of
operation of the Group as well as the prevailing market
conditions. Individual attendance of each remuneration
committee member is as follows:

Name of HEE
TMEEEREHKR remuneration committee member Attendance
ZiER (/) LAW Toe Ming (Chairman) 2/2
2SR LEUNG Tai Chiu 2/2
@z MARK Yiu Tong, William 2/2

2017/18 Annual Report %
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE
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The Company established a nomination committee on
23 March 2012. The principal function of the
nomination committee is to review the structure, size,
composition and diversity of the Board at least annually
with reference to the business needs and development
of the Company and make recommendations to the
Board on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Group’s corporate strategy. The
nomination committee has a policy concerning the
diversity of Board members (the “Policy”). Pursuant to
the Policy, in reviewing the Board’s diversity, the Board
will consider including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. New directors, being individuals who are suitably
qualified and expected to make a positive contribution
to the performance of the Board and having regards to
the criteria stated in the Policy, will be identified and
submitted to the Board or shareholders for approval
either to fill vacancies on the Board or to be appointed
as additional directors. The terms of reference of the
nomination committee are consistent with the code
provisions set out in the Code. During the year ended
31 March 2018, the nomination committee comprised
the chairman and an executive director, Mr. Cheng Hop
Fai, who acts as the chairman of the nomination
committee and the two INEDs, namely, Mr. Law Toe
Ming and Mr. Mark Yiu Tong, William as members.
During the year ended 31 March 2018, the nomination
committee held one meeting to review the composition
and diversity of the Board as well as to assess the
independence of the INED who offered himself for
re-election at the annual general meeting. Since the
Board is composed of members having a mix of core
competencies in areas of accounting and finance,
business management, industry knowledge and
marketing strategies, the nomination committee
considered the Board possessed a diversity of
perspectives which is up to the standard of the Code
and was appropriate to the Group’s requirements.
Individual attendance of each of the nomination
committee members is as follows:

2017/18 Annual Report %R



REZES (HA) NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

Name of HER
REZEEREHR nomination committee member Attendance
BEE(EE) CHENG Hop Fai (Chairman) 11
7 78 LAW Toe Ming 11
HRE MARK Yiu Tong, William 1/1
BEREER AUDIT COMMITTEE
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The Company has established an audit committee since
1999. The primary functions of the audit committee
include:

(a)

(©

To make recommendations on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of external auditor and
to consider the terms of such appointments;

To review and monitor the auditor’s independence;
to develop and implement policies on the
engagement of auditor for non-audit services;

To monitor the integrity of the financial statements,
annual and interim reports and the auditor’s report;
to review the Group’s financial and accounting
policies and practices and to ensure that the
information presents a true and fair assessment of
the Group’s financial position;

To review the Group’s financial controls, risk
management and internal control systems; to ensure
management has fulfilled its duty to have effective
systems and to review and monitor the effectiveness
of the internal audit function;

To consider major investigation findings on risk
management and internal control matters as
delegated by the Board or on its own initiative and
management’s response to these findings; and

To review the auditor’'s management letter and any
questions raised by the auditor to management, and
management’s response.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BHNEREEERAR
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)
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The terms of reference of the audit committee adopted
on 23 March 2012 are consistent with the code
provisions set out in the Code. During the year ended
31 March 2018, the audit committee comprised three
INEDs, namely, Mr. Leung Tai Chiu as chairman and
Mr. Law Toe Ming and Mr. Mark Yiu Tong, William as
members.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the audit
committee held two meetings and has reviewed with
senior management and the auditor their respective
audit findings, the interim and annual financial
statements and the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group. The audit committee
recommended the Board to adopt the interim and
annual reports for 2017/18. Individual attendance of
each member of the audit committee is as follows:

Name of W=
ERZEEREHRB audit committee member Attendance
PR (F/E) LEUNG Tai Chiu (Chairman) 2/2
RIEH LAW Toe Ming 2/2
HRE MARK Yiu Tong, William 2/2
ZEET 2B & AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

HE-T— \F=ZA=1+—BLLFE #
AN « WMEMES & EHET1TA
7 S B4R 4 B R 3R BRI AT 2
mE -

The remuneration payable in respect of the year ended
31 March 2018 for audit and non-audit services
provided to the Group by the Company’s auditor,
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, is as follows:

LAF & TTat

Amount in HKD'000

ZEER Audit Fees 430
FZBER(EERKE Non-Audit Fees (principally for accounts

EFETEREZER) review and taxation services) 113

543

REE g AERRETRHE 2 BRAE FIER
RER 7 E38F43F o

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAT

The statement made by the auditor in respect of their
reporting responsibilities is set out on pages 38 to 43 of
this annual report.
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PEEREE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS
EECBRERBRBOZOETABAEEH M The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
T governance duties as set out below:—

(@ HERBIARFRZEEEABER
FRYAMESSRELES
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RBE_Z-N\F=A=+—RHIEFE"
EXeCRIAEEZEEEARRNLE
MARETEZR BEERERERERT
Al ZBR e

NEME

(@) To develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board;

(b) To review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management;

(c) To review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(d) To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees and directors; and

(e) To review the Company’s compliance with the Code
and its disclosure requirements in the Corporate
Governance Report.

The Board has reviewed the Group’s polices and
practices on corporate governance practices and
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements
including compliance with the Code for the year ended
31 March 2018.

COMPANY SECRETARY

ARABATESEARALT A -TTX
F-_A+LAR —EHAARAZATW
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BT EET EMARNEEER R
Nz BE -

it D

R R &

Ms. Cheng Pak Ming Judy, an executive director of the
Company, has been the company secretary of the
Company since 17 February 2006. Ms. Cheng complied
with the qualification and training requirements under
the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 March 2018.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

BRREH

AR BERRRFIEEED  REW
HEESAMTMREMR TEERRQ AW
ERNARREEB 2 EEZLEME - Uk
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RBEEROIEI08E @ A BHXEFH
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Shareholders’ Enquiries

Shareholders are encouraged to maintain direct
communication with the Company. Shareholders who
have any questions for the Board may write directly to
the company secretary at the Company’'s Hong Kong
principal place of business, Unit 108, 1st Floor, East
Ocean Centre, 98 Granville Road, Tsimshatsui East,
Kowloon, Hong Kong, or send emails to info@g-vision.
com.hk. The company secretary will direct the questions
to the Board.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BHNEREEERAR
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RERED (F) SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)
BEREH (E) Shareholders’ Enquiries (Continued)
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Any questions regarding the shareholdings of the
shareholders can be addressed directly to the Company’s
branch share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited at 46th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong.

Shareholders’ Meetings

Shareholders are encouraged to participate in general
meetings or to appoint proxies to attend and vote at
meetings if they are unable to attend the meetings.

The process of the Company’s general meeting will be
monitored and reviewed on a regular basis, and, if
necessary, changes will be made to ensure that
shareholders’ needs are best served.

Board members, in particular, either the chairman of
Board committees or their delegates, appropriate
management executives and external auditor will attend
annual general meetings to answer shareholders’
questions.

Should shareholders wish to call a special general
meeting, it must be convened according to the
Company’s Bye-laws. In summary:

(a) Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company can, in writing to
the Board or the company secretary, request a
special general meeting to be called by the Board to
transact any business specified in such request.

(b) The signed written request, which should specify
the purpose of the meeting, should be delivered to
the Company’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong. The meeting will be held within two months
after receipt of the request. If the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting within
twenty-one days after receiving the request, the
shareholders themselves may do so in accordance
with the provisions of section 74(3) of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

BEXH
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Constitutional Documents

There was no significant change to the Company’s
Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws
("Constitutional Documents”) during the year ended 31
March 2018. A latest version of the Constitutional
Documents can be downloaded from the websites of the
Company or the Stock Exchange.
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Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
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Mr. Cheng Hop Fai, aged 74, appointed as a director
on 12 June 1992, is the chairman and managing director
of the Company and the chairman of the nomination
committee of the Company. He is also a director of
various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Cheng is one
of the founders of the Group and has over 30 years’
experience in the restaurant business. He has been
instrumental in the formulation and implementation of
the business policies of the Group and is responsible for
the general management and strategic planning of the
Group. Mr. Cheng is also a director of Golden Toy
Investments Limited (“Golden Toy”) and Kong Fai
International Limited (“Kong Fai”) which own
approximately 8.88% and 65.62%, respectively, of the
issued shares of the Company. Mr. Cheng is the father
of Ms. Cheng Pak Ming, Judy, Ms. Cheng Pak Man,
Anita and Ms. Cheng Pak Lai, Lily who are all executive
directors of the Company.

Ms. Cheng Pak Ming, Judy, aged 47, was appointed
as an executive director of the Company on 25
September 1992. She was also appointed as the
company secretary of the Company on 17 February
2006. Ms. Cheng is a daughter of Mr. Cheng Hop Fai
and a sister of Ms. Cheng Pak Man, Anita and
Ms. Cheng Pak Lai, Lily. She holds a Bachelor degree in
Economics from the University of Sydney and a Master
of Commerce degree from the University of New South
Wales, Sydney. She is a Certified Practising Accountant
of CPA Australia and a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. She is
responsible for the financial and company secretarial
functions of the Group.

Ms. Cheng Pak Man, Anita, aged 46, was appointed
as an executive director of the Company on 30
September 2004. Ms. Cheng is a daughter of Mr. Cheng
Hop Fai and a sister of Ms. Cheng Pak Ming, Judy and
Ms. Cheng Pak Lai, Lily. She holds a Bachelor of
Commerce degree from the University of New South
Wales, Sydney and a Master of Applied Finance degree
from Macquarie University, Sydney. She is a Certified
Practising Accountant of CPA Australia and a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Cheng has worked in the
investment banking and accounting fields in Hong Kong
for over 5 years. She is responsible for the business
development, marketing and strategic planning
functions of the Group.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BHNEREEERAR
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)
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Ms. Cheng Pak Lai, Lily, aged 45, was appointed as an
executive director of the Company on 1 April 2011.
Ms. Cheng is a daughter of Mr. Cheng Hop Fai and a
sister of Ms. Cheng Pak Ming, Judy and Ms. Cheng Pak
Man, Anita. She joined the Group in 2006. Ms. Cheng is
responsible for the administration, financial and strategic
planning functions of the Group. Prior to joining the
Group, Ms. Cheng had extensive finance and accounting
experiences in multinational audit firm, investment bank
and a renowned chemical company. She holds a
Bachelor of Commerce degree from the University of
New South Wales, Sydney and is a Certified Practising
Accountant of CPA Australia.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
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Mr. Leung Tai Chiu, aged 72, was appointed as an
INED on 11 August 2011. He is the chairman of the
audit committee of the Company and a member of the
remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Leung
graduated from The University of Hong Kong in 1969.
Mr. Leung is a member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales. He has over 30 years
of experience in accounting and auditing sectors and
had been an audit partner in international renowned
accounting firms for 20 years. In 2005, Mr. Leung
retired from PricewaterhouseCoopers. Mr. Leung was
the president of Lions Club of Victoria in 1986 and 1998
and a director of Yan Oi Tong from 1995 to 1997. He is
a member of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors and
is an independent non-executive director of Kingboard
Laminates Holdings Limited, EVA Precision Industrial
Holdings Limited and Kingboard Chemical Holding
Limited, all of which are listed on the main board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Mr. Law Toe Ming, aged 76, was appointed as an INED
on 1 December 1994. He is the chairman of the
remuneration committee of the Company and a member
of the audit committee and nomination committee of
the Company. Mr. Law has over 38 years’ experience in
business management. He is a director of Texful Textile
Limited.

Mr. Mark Yiu Tong, William, aged 82, was appointed
as NED of the Company on 25 September 1992. He was
re-designated as an INED of the Company with effect
from 16 September 2004. He is a member of the
Company’s remuneration committee, nomination
committee and audit committee. Mr. Mark is a
renowned food critic and a regular contributor to many
newspapers and magazines in Hong Kong and overseas.
He writes under the pen name of “MEEE” in Chinese
newspapers and magazines and is the author of several
books on Chinese cookery. He holds many awards in the
food industry.
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Report of the Directors

The directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

ARFB—RREERAT - HXZ2H B
RAEIZEBTHHETBLEFPHRHIMN K
ZiBE e
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The Company is an investment holding company. Its
principal subsidiaries are engaged in the operation of
restaurants in Hong Kong which specialise in Chiu Chow
Cuisine.

RESULTS
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The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2018 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income on page 44 of
this annual report.

The Board has resolved not to recommend the payment
of a final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2018
(2017: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW
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A fair review of the business of the Group as well as a
discussion and analysis of the Group’s performance
during the year as required by schedule 5 to the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong
Kong) including a discussion of the principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Group and a discussion of the
Group's likely future development can be found in the
Chairman’s Statement and the Management Discussion
and Analysis of this annual report. The financial risk
management objectives and policies of the Group are
shown in note 22 to the consolidated financial
statements. Those discussions form part of this directors’
report. The environmental, social and governance report
of the Company to be published within 3 months after
the publication of this annual report shall also form part
of the business review.
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BFEBERERESR

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

REBEFER BEEREEEMA K
SETESKERITETEREER
ERMHEEEG RN EEBRERTE -

BES - EFRHERZEE

During the year under review, as far as the Board and
the management are aware, there was no material
breach of or non-compliance with the applicable laws
and regulations by the Group that has a significant
impact on the business and operations of the Group.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS

AEEREFEEAERES TP LRHEBRE
RBERHEINERMLERHEEZEE
H-NOBEFERN AEEEEREES &
FRhHrmzEAMERERERMUD -

FEHEBEREF

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a
good relationship with its employees, customers and
suppliers to meet its immediate and long-term business
goals. During the year under review, there were no
material and significant disputes between the Group and
its employees, customers or suppliers.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

RARFEE AEERARAKRHER  H
EEBEIOANNGEEEZRBEITRR
42% -

RAFEE  REBRATP ZHBWARE
AT E30% °

MEEAESLRESCBEAL  AHRE
EFAMBERARRBRAS%IA LS 2 1E
AR REARHEE T A A s

BREBRERRRE

The aggregate purchases attributable to the largest
supplier and five largest suppliers of the Group were
17% and 42%, respectively, of the Group’s purchases
for the year.

The aggregate revenue attributable to the five largest
customers of the Group was less than 30% of the
Group's revenue for the year.

None of the directors, their respective associates nor any
shareholder, which to the knowledge of the directors
owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital, has
an interest in any of the five largest suppliers of the
Group.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

SV EPES EEE AN L Ey
B o RS B BN T IR AR M0 (0%
B TRAEANBRER - UEREH
HABRRIEMFAERERAT -

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAT

The Company is committed to the sustainable
development of the environment and the society. The
Group has endeavoured to comply with the laws and
regulations regarding environmental protection and
adopted effective environmental practices to ensure the
business meet the required standards and ethics in
respect of environmental protection.
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M~ BERERE PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

KEIZ%% R REERFERNZEE Details of the movement of property, plant and

FBREHIRERA BRI TEN - equipment of the Group during the year are set out in
note 11 to the consolidated financial statements.

B DONATIONS

AREBFRODBEFEAN ELEEZBE During the year under review, charitable donations of

20,0008 L (ZE—+F : 20000,’%75) ° HK$20,000 were made by the Group (2017:
HK$20,000).

R A SHARE CAPITAL

RRARBRAZ BEHEBHINNGEE MG Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital

R LT o

2

are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DIRECTORS

RAFERBEARARENEARN 2 ERE
=T

BITES:

BB (TEREFMEHE)
LSS

BHH

BB

BUKUTEE
PRI
Wi
BB

RIFARF ZARABRIES7(1)K - BA S
Zt MABRLRRRBBEEHNERE
BREBFRE FRERE HEKFHAE
B FR B B ST o

EREEETCESMBEEARARRRE(L

B AR ARIEAEE S ME OX
EMERIN)  BRTER—FARRILEZ
RIEEH »
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The directors during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive director:

CHENG Hop Fai (Chairman and Managing Director)
CHENG Pak Ming, Judy

CHENG Pak Man, Anita

CHENG Pak Lai, Lily

Independent non-executive director:

LEUNG Tai Chiu
LAW Toe Ming
MARK Yiu Tong, William

In accordance with Bye-law 87(1) of the Company’'s
Bye-laws, Ms. Cheng Pak Man, Anita, Ms. Cheng Pak
Lai, Lily and Mr. Leung Tai Chiu will retire from office by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

None of the directors proposed for re-election has a
service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BHNEREEERAR

25



ESEWmE
Report of the Directors

EENERD - HERORESHZ

Em

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

RZZE-NF=ZA=+—H8  ARAH®E
EERTFBTHRABRBEFZHEALR
ARPREEMBEEEFFHEZ KD -
R, RESEREQBREES AR
Pl (158 7% R BB &R P11) EXVEBH7 %8

DEST A E ARQ A KB T k(b)) B IR IE
B 5 N B E GBI 3526 M & A % 15 BT

iz ERE - SK()BRIBE AT LR
A ER10FTE 2 ETBITAERETES

As at 31 March 2018, the interests of the directors and
the chief executive and their associates in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
associated corporations which (a) were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"); or (b) were required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein; or (c) were required,

RPpZIEEFEIMMERNRARRBERM 2 pursuant to the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10
AR NN to the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange were as follows:
Ha Long positions
(1) RARAEFREECNS TEBIX 2 (1) Long positions in ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of
e the Company:
HARRB S BT
BEAZBHBED
BEE®T Approximate
HBERHE percentage of
B RERME Number of issued the issued
EEnE Capacity and ordinary share capital
Name of director nature of interest shares held of the Company
HaiE ERnERBA 6,900,000 0.35%
Cheng Hop Fai Beneficial owner
HaE ErE X A Wi 1,450,037,841 74.50%
Cheng Hop Fai Beneficiary of trusts Mot
A SRR | A i) 1,450,037,841 74.50%
Cheng Pak Ming, Judy Beneficiary of trusts
A ErE X am A (it 1,450,037,841 74.50%
Cheng Pak Man, Anita Beneficiary of trusts Mot
HEE ErtX s A Wi 1,450,037,841 74.50%
Cheng Pak Lai, Lily Beneficiary of trusts Mot
=B SRR 2 B e 2,000,000 0.10%

Law Toe Ming

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAT

Interest of controlled
corporation (e
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,

B (8) UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
(Continued)
#e (&) Long positions (Continued)
(1) RARRESRHEBECNBTEBERZ (1) Long positions in ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of
HE: (8) the Company: (Continued)
Htat Notes:
(@) Golden Toy Investments Limited (a) Golden Toy Investments Limited (“Golden Toy”) and
([ Golden Toyl) kKong Fai Kong Fai International Limited (“Kong Fai”) held
International Limited ([Kong Fail) % Al 172,869,780 shares (or 8.88% interest) and
BB A QAR Z172,869,780M% A 15 (=X 1,277,168,061 shares (or 65.62% interest) of the
8.88% M ) M1,277,168,061 1% i% 15 Company, respectively. Golden Toy and Kong Fai are
(3£65.62%# %) ° Golden ToyKong wholly-owned by two discretionary trusts of which
FailVEEMIBEEETE2ERE %MW family members of Mr. Cheng Hop Fai, including
BEAZI G ABBEEBLEZRE Mr. Cheng Hop Fai, Ms. Cheng Pak Ming, Judy,
KE BESEELEYE  MAALLE - Ms. Cheng Pak Man, Anita and Ms. Cheng Pak Lai, Lily
ML LT REBABL L - are discretionary objects.
(b) EZERA %L £ Jubilee Trade Holdings (b) Mr. Law Toe Ming is deemed to be interested in the
Limited ([ Jubilee ) £ & 2 # % il 4 4% 2,000,000 shares held by Jubilee Trade Holdings Limited
A 142,000,0008% B 15 B s o ("Jubilee”) by virtue of his interest in Jubilee.
(2 EkEZTE (2) Long positions in share options:

ZAN/NES] f—iﬁfﬁﬁﬂwﬂ;ﬁ%ﬂz
PR RIR & - 48 IREROR R BB IR
FERiERT B ([FEARIEETED) - ZIBAR
BB BRPE_T_TFRAN
HesEIZH#BERRGRAEVBRE
BzE18 °

2017/18 Annual Report %

The Company by shareholders’ resolutions passed at
the special general meeting held on 10 May 2010
has adopted a share option scheme, which shall be
valid and effective until 8 May 2020 (the “Option
Scheme”). Particulars of the Option Scheme are set
out in note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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EENERD - HERORESHZ
Em (&)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

(Continued)

#R (&)
2) BEREZER: (B)

BHE_ZT-NF=ZA=+t—-HILF
B REARABEREASIRTES

BRI HEBFEHIWT

Long positions (Continued)

(2) Long positions in share options:(Continued)

Details of movements in the share options granted
to the directors under the Option Scheme for the
year ended 31 March 2018 are set out below:

ERESHE
Number of share options
Wog-tf  ngpag R-F-NE
mA-A g8 ZA=t-A
SRTKE AT Expired/ AT
Exercise  Outstanding granted  Outstanding
gz RYBH TEHE price as at during as at
Director Date of grant Exercisable period per share 1.4.2017 the year 31.3.2018
g5 “2-%% —EZ--ERfAThAZE HK$0.420 5,000,000 (5,000,000) -
EAtAR ZE-tFRATIR
Cheng Hop Fai 19.05.2010 19 05.2011-18.05.2017
“E-tf ZE-tETAZT=RE HK$0.177 - 6,000,000 6,000,000
TAZ1ZH _7_ﬁ¢+ﬂ +ZH
23.10.2017 23.10.2017 - 22.10.2025
ga4 Z2-%F  ZE-ERATNAZE HK$0.420 4,250,000 (4,250,000) -
ﬁﬂﬂlﬁ ZE-tERATNR
Cheng Pak Ming, Judy 19.05.2010 19.05.2011 -18.05.2017
“E-tE ZE-tETAZT=RE HK$0.177 - 6,000,000 6,000,000
tAT1ZR CS-EEtA-TCR
23.10.2017 23.10.2017 - 22.10.2025
gnd Z2-%F ZE-E1ATNAZE HK$0.420 4,250,000 (4,250,000) -
ﬁﬂﬂlﬁ “E-t514T)\B
Cheng Pak Man, Anita 19.05.2010 1905 2011-18.05.2017
“E-tE ZE-tETAZT=RE HK$0.177 - 6,000,000 6,000,000
tR+Z8  CECEETR-ToA
23.10.2017 23.10.2017 - 22.10.2025
LS ZE-tE ZE-tETA-=RE HK$0.177 - 6,000,000 6,000,000
tA-tZR  ZE-RE+A-tzH
Cheng Pak Lai, Lily 23.10.2017 23.10.2017—22.10.2025
RRE “3—t% ZE-tErA-TZRHE HK$0.177 - 2,000,000 2,000,000
TAZT=H _q_ﬁJrH +ZH
Leung Tai Chiu 23.10.2017 23.10.2017 - 22.10.2025
EEY Z%-% “E——%RA+NA% HK$0.420 1,900,000 (1,900,000) -
1A+NA “2-+ERATNA
Law Toe Ming 19.05.2010 19.05.2011 -18.05.2017
5t ZE-HETACTZRE HK$0.177 - 2,000,000 2,000,000
+A-1=H _7_£¢+ﬂ +ZH
23.10.2017 23.10.2017 - 22.10.2025
Kz Z3-% Z5--ERATNAZ HK$0.420 1,900,000 (1,900,000) -
1A+NA “E-+ERATNA
Mark Yiu Tong, William 19.05.2010 19.05.2011-18.05.2017
I e i I = HK$0.177 - 2,000,000 2,000,000
tB-+=B -E-1%t+A-tZH
23.10.2017 23.10.2017 - 22.10.2025
17,300,000 12,700,000 30,000,000

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAT
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
(Continued)

wR (&)

(2) BREZHRE  (B)
R EXHIBEEIN RZF-NF=
A=+—H BEARAEEREE
TBRABERBESLREGENSE
XVEPET7 %87 BRI B AE MR /IR
ARABREFEFBEEE 2B, - 8
Bl RESPHEAEME RS
KRB ()RRIERE S RS RHIEXV
#BET7TM8D B M A E AN R F MR
o (b)) ERIEE 5 KB RHF
3521 MEAZ R 2 B et
(B RBIZESTRIMAE AR A M

B S Py

BAROIEZ 22 B

Long positions (Continued)

(2) Long positions in share options:(Continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2018, none
of the directors and the chief executive of the
Company was, under Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO, taken to be interested or deemed to
have any other interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any associated corporations which (a)
would have to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO, or (b) which were required to
be entered into the register referred to therein
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or (c) which
were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

B EXP B BRERAEIN  RAF
EEMEEA - AR5 REAA B QA
IR R E R B AT B A R B ERT (T
Mz BEESAEEARRALEM
HiAABEBZ R RESFMERS -

2017/18 Annual Report %

Other than the options holdings disclosed above, at no
time during the year was the Company, any of its
subsidiaries or holding company, or any subsidiary of its
holding company, a party to any arrangements to enable
the directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company
or any other body corporate.
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FERR

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

BARETEEN EXREZ BRI 0=
2 N\E=ZA=+—A ADABEEEL
RSBk E S T EREBE
BET FHALBRABAAT  ERA
NRBBAIRET 2 BHERRAR - X
RIS B 5 R 15D EXVE E2R35

BT {1 B

"R

RABFREENVETZ EBK

=1

Name

Golden Toy

Kong Fai

Alpadis Trust (HK) Limited

Alpaids Group Holding SA

Alain Esseiva

Moritz Gubler

Sui Lin Lai

Other than the interests disclosed above in respect of
certain directors, as at 31 March 2018, the register of
substantial shareholders maintained by the Company
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO indicated that the
following persons had notified the Company of interests
or short positions in the issued share capital of the

Company which fall to be disclosed to the Company
under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

Long positions

B RESMHE
Capacity and
nature of interest

ERBEA
Beneficial owner

BEmEAA

Beneficial owner

EREZFEA
Trustee of trusts

TEHICE EE
Interest of controlled
corporation

TEBIME s EE
Interest of controlled
corporation

REEIRE s ER
Interest of controlled
corporation

Fo B 2 s
Interest of spouse

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAT

FEEZ
ERTEERYAE
Number of issued

ordinary shares held
172,869,780 @
1,277,168,061 @

1,450,037,841@

1,450,037,841®

1,450,037,841©

1,450,037,841

1,450,037,841 @

Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of the Company:

HARRBE BT
BEAZHBAOBDL
Approximate
percentage of
the issued

share capital of
the Company

8.88%

65.62%

74.50%

74.50%

74.50%

74.50%

74.50%
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FERR (&) SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

& (&) Long positions (Continued)

Hiz Notes:

(@) WREEHFLEEKD  (EAMEEZEETE (@) Alpadis Trust (HK) Limited is deemed under the SFO to have
iz (# B Golden ToyKong Faiz 100% 4 %) an interest in the same 1,450,037,841 shares, in aggregate,
2 %A Alpadis Trust (HK) Limited % % & beneficially owned by Golden Toy and Kong Fai by virtue of it
A Golden ToyFKong Faiffi & £ EwHEAR 2 being the trustee of two discretionary trusts which own
#[F1,450,037,84 1 BRI 0 R L 5 #E 2 o 100% of the shares of Golden Toy and Kong Fai.

(b)  Alpadis Group Holding SATF#E 2 AR E E % (b) The corporate substantial shareholder notice filed by Alpadis
RBAMEHEREZES R BAEENE R Group Holding SA indicated that it is deemed to be interested
Alpadis Trust (HK) Limited¥$ A 2 # &= i 4% in the 1,450,037,841 shares under the SFO by virtue of its
771,450,037, 84 1 IR AR fn B #E 2 - interest held in Alpadis Trust (HK) Limited.

(c) Alain EsseivaXMoritz Gublerfz#g 2 1@ A = (c) The individual substantial shareholder notice filed by Alain
LZRRRBMELFERERES LB EGRERK Esseiva and Moritz Gubler indicated that they are deemed to
M Alpadis Group Holding SATF A 2 # & M # be interested in the 1,450,037,841 shares under the SFO by
18 AM1,450,037, 841 IR R E G RERS © virtue of their interests held in Alpadis Group Holding SA.

(d) Sui Lin LaiFEZz@AZEZRERELHER (d) The individual substantial shareholder notice filed by Sui Lin
1,450,037, 8418 i 2 = I E /(B Lai indicated that her deemed interest in the 1,450,037,841
Moritz GublerZ # 2 © shares represents the interest of her spouse, Moritz Gubler.

B EXFTHEEEIN  SLEEATAN Save as disclosed above, the directors are not aware of

IS

NE=ZA=+—H8 AEEEAMHE Tﬂj\i
AR 2B AR Pz E =S

FRE AR ARRRERALREE S M

H

EIEHE3361&FE 2 ERMA -

2017/18 Annual Report %

any other persons who, as at 31 March 2018, had any
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company that were required to be entered
into the register kept by the Company pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO.
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BYFHITES 2HER

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

ARADWEBSAIBLIFATEERIRH
RHREs EMARREINMGE B
B2 FERR - ARARBRMEBILIEHN
TEFYRBL °

EERANRBEERZh 2R

The Company has received, from each of the INEDs, an
annual confirmation of independence pursuant to rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that
all of the INEDs are independent.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(@) REEH-_EE_FHANBHEAR
EREEAR AR (BRI ETYWE
EBKEAREBERBER - AQRE
—FEHEBRNEEROMNER AHERY

S2RERFzZMHES -

R-ZE—NERARRHE - AEBHHEE
FEELEMMEL BB —WF
AA—BREBE-_ZE—+FNA=+H
IEA# =4 AF350,0008 T (T8
FEMm EREERALAKE) %2
—EABR_ZE—+tFNA—HE_Z
—+tFNHA=+H HEEXK: A
1,050,000/ JT ° AN 2 7] E2 15 F BE i
AHERT2R —HBE L EEMETE
AR Bk FITHEBBEERARR
—EZ-NFERARBEREZ2THEMA
AR CHBEHERARAR
—E-MERATRELEZAMA -

R-ZE—+FEMA=-+/\H KEH
HENMEEZLABELY HHA T
—+tFREA—HEBRE-_ZE-_FTFNA
—t+BiI-A# =4 A%360,000%
T(TRE=ZMm EEBLLAE)
FAE®R S 51,080,000/ 7T « AR A
R A AR 2R B E
EWEFHRA - BkFITERERM
BARARNRZZE—ttHFWMA=-+N\H
FrizgzemBEie R HZFHB
EHEHRARATR _-_ZT—+FEMA
ZHNBERZAMGA -

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAT

(a)

The Group has leased from Homley Development
Limited (“Homley"”) certain properties for the
Group’s restaurant operation since 6 May 2002. The
monthly rental was negotiated with Homley with
reference to the market rents when the tenancy
agreement was renewed every three years.

On 5 May 2014, the Group renewed the tenancy
agreement with Homley for a further period of
three years commencing 1 May 2014 to 30 April
2017 at a monthly rental of HK$350,000 (exclusive
of rates and management and air-conditioning fees)
with rent free period for one month from 1 April
2017 to 30 April 2017 and a rental deposit of
HK$1,050,000. The monthly rental was negotiated
with Homley with reference to the market rents as
at 5 May 2014 as advised by RHL Appraisal Limited,
a firm of independent professional property valuers.
Details of the arrangement are set out in the
announcement dated 5 May 2014 issued by the
Company.

On 28 April 2017, the Group renewed the tenancy
agreement with Homley for a further period of
three years commencing 1 May 2017 to 30 April
2020 at a monthly rental of HK$360,000 (exclusive
of rates and management and air-conditioning fees)
and a rental deposit of HK$1,080,000. The monthly
rental was negotiated with Homley with reference
to the market rents as at 28 April 2017 as advised
by RHL Appraisal Limited, a firm of independent
professional property valuers. Details of the
arrangement are set out in the announcement
dated 28 April 2017 issued by the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(a)

(%)
HBRRE L AR F AR S
#$3,960,000/& 7T °

& FThGolden Toyz &M B AR
WMAERARNTESTHEELE B
HRAZT BEGXtREOEXL
ZHEBAL WIRE FTRAEE S
RARZBAEANT -

AEER -_ZTTHRF-A=+—H
B mEREXRARAF (M)A
A—EEEXREEN - ARBEF=F
HEWBEBEENNRERAER 58
S2BERBZMGHES -

R-TE—RE—A=+H KAEHA
SHEERN=F BT —AHF=
A—BAgz-_Z— N\F—A=+—H
1 A78,0008 T ("B IE=MW -
ERBNRLAE) M ER£156,000
BT e

R-ZZE—-NE—A=+H A&EEHHA
SHWEBERN=F BT N\F=
BA—BARE-_ZEZ-_——HF=+—8H
1k A#75,0008 0 (NRIEZE0 -
ERBRAAE) KHEEE$150,000
BT

SWARE PO RNFARARR 2 EE
£930,0008 L AMEBANEH 2
RRmizHemMET BT ZFE
EHRARGR-_E—AF—A=+
Ak N\F—A=+HELZA
A e
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(a)

(Continued)

Rentals charged by Homley during the year under
the said tenancy agreement amounted to
HK$3,960,000.

Homley is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Golden Toy
and therefore is an associate of the executive
directors of the Company, namely, Mr. Cheng Hop
Fai, Ms. Cheng Pak Ming, Judy, Ms. Cheng Pak
Man, Anita and Ms. Cheng Pak Lai, Lily, and is
regarded as a connected person of the Company
under the Listing Rules.

The Group has leased from Hover City Industrial
Limited (“Hover City”) a unit of a residential
building since 31 January 2005. The monthly rental
was negotiated with Hover City with reference to
the market rents when the tenancy agreement was
renewed every three years.

On 30 January 2015, the Group renewed the
tenancy agreement with Hover City for a further
period of three years commencing 1 February 2015
to 31 January 2018 at a monthly rental of
HK$78,000 (exclusive of rates and management and
air-conditioning fees) and a rental deposit of
HK$156,000.

On 30 January 2018, the Group renewed the
tenancy agreement with Hover City for a further
period of three years commencing 1 February 2018
to 31 January 2021 at a monthly rental of
HK$75,000 (exclusive of rates and management and
air-conditioning fees) and a rental deposit of
HK$150,000.

Rental charged by Hover City during the year under
the said tenancy agreement amounted to
HK$930,000. The monthly rental was determined by
both parties with reference to market rents. Details
of the arrangement are set out in the
announcement dated 30 January 2015 and 30
January 2018 issued by the Company.
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EERANEBEERZ D 2R (&)

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b)

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAT

(%)

S, JhGolden Toyz & &K B AR
WARANRRITESHEELE B
HRAZ+T BRI REOELZLT
ZHMEALT  WREEMRAFEERR
KRR ZBEANL -

AEBR-_T——-F—A=1tH "
AEREBRAR ([FAEDER—@E

o

X

AZE—FRF—A=+H A£EEH
AEBBEH=ZF B-FT—HF_A
—HRBEE-_ZT—-—N\F—HA=+—H
1k - A%H100,000/% T (B35 = -
ERBLARE) S2HEHAMMEAH
TE-RF—A—HBE_ZT—RF—
A=Z+—HEZZE—NF—H—HZ
—E-NF-A=+—BKEHEE®RS
/£5239,9374 T ©

i

I}

WR-ZE—-NE—A=1+H AEERA
AEBHEO=F BT —NF_A
—BRRE_E-_——A=+—H
1F - A7100,000% 7T (TR IEZE0 -
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(b)

(Continued)

Hover City is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Golden
Toy and therefore is an associate of the executive
directors of the Company, namely, Mr. Cheng Hop
Fai, Ms. Cheng Pak Ming, Judy, Ms. Cheng Pak
Man, Anita and Ms. Cheng Pak Lai, Lily, and is
regarded as a connected person of the Company
under the Listing Rules.

The Group has leased from Sky Global Investments
Limited (“Sky Global”) an office since 30 January
2012.

On 30 January 2015, the Group renewed the
tenancy agreement with Sky Global for a further
period of three years commencing from 1 February
2015 to 31 January 2018 at a monthly rental of
HK$100,000 (exclusive of rates and management
and air-conditioning fees) with rent free periods for
two months from 1 January 2016 to 31 January
2016 and from 1 January 2018 to 31 January 2018
and a rental deposit of HK$239,937.

On 30 January 2018, the Group renewed the
tenancy agreement with Sky Global for a further
period of three years commencing from 1 February
2018 to 31 January 2021 at a monthly rental of
HK$100,000 (exclusive of rates and management
and air-conditioning fees) and a rental deposit of
HK$240,854.

Rental charged by Sky Global during the year under
the said tenancy agreement amounted to
HK$1,100,000. The monthly rental was determined
by both parties with reference to the market rents.
Details of the arrangement are set out in the
announcement dated 30 January 2015 and 30
January 2018 issued by the Company.

Sky Global is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Hover City
which in turn is a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of
Golden Toy and therefore is an associate of the
executive directors of the Company, namely,
Mr. Cheng Hop Fai, Ms. Cheng Pak Ming, Judy,
Ms. Cheng Pak Man, Anita and Ms. Cheng Pak Lai,
Lily, and is regarded as a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
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The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
auditor has issued its unqualified letter containing its
findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed by the Group in (a) to
(c) above in accordance with Listing Rule 14A.56. A copy
of the auditor's letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.

The INEDs have reviewed the continuing connected
transactions and the report of the auditor and have
confirmed that the transactions have been entered into
by the Company in the ordinary course of its business,
on normal commercial terms and in accordance with the
terms of the agreement governing such transactions that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Save as disclosed above, there was no other contract of
significance, to which the Company, any of its
subsidiaries or holding company, or any subsidiary of its
holding company was a party and in which a director of
the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisting at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BHNEREEERAR
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
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No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Group were entered into or in
existence during the year under review.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

RER > XABHEEFME R RN ER
B HEIBEOARRF 2N o

B BUR

There was no purchase, sale or redemption of the
Company’s shares by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries during the year.

REMUNERATION POLICY

FMEZEeeRBEARBZEERE @
BIALTZRERAHELEBR 2 T5 5 BUR
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The remuneration of all directors and senior
management of the Company are decided by the
remuneration committee, having regard to the
Company’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics.

Employees of the Group are compensated based on their
merit, qualifications and competence.

The Option Scheme was adopted by the Company on 10
May 2010. The Option Scheme provides long-term
incentives to directors and eligible employees and also
serves as a retention tool for high performing staff.
Details of the Option Scheme are set out in note 18 to
the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

EANYNETA/NEIE R AR 3= 9731 Rik: S =2 T
BARBRRATEARAFTREIMESR K
REEHMK

RAEZDBREFERE

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

REBEAIBIHZARGEERMNESHAN &
ERRBRARANRBE_ZT - /\F=A
St HEFEABEEARSAN—HH

RARBLARFRE -

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAT

Based on the information that is publicly available and
within the knowledge of the directors, the directors
confirm that the Company has maintained a sufficient
public float throughout the year ended 31 March 2018
and up to the date of this report.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY
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Under Bye-law 166(1) of the Company’s Bye-laws, the
directors shall be indemnified and secured harmless out
of the assets and profits of the Company from and
against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they or any of them, their or any of
their heirs, executors or administrators, shall or may
incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done,
concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of
their duty, or supposed duty, in their respective offices
or trusts, provided that this indemnity shall not extend
to any matter in respect of any wilful negligence, wilful
default, fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any of
said persons.

During the year under review, the Company has taken
out and maintained appropriate insurance to cover

potential legal actions against its Directors.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

ARBEBEENE ANRAFR2 (B
PRt B EE TR B L BEC
E-N\F=ZA=+—HILFE ~EEY
B R EF AT REHBHE -

% H e

The Company has share option scheme, the details of
which are set out in the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” in this annual report. Save as the aforesaid, no
equity-linked agreements were entered into by the
Group or existed during the year ended 31 March 2018.

AUDITOR

ARBBRBREBEFAE LIRE —HRE
EREH -MERN FAMITAAR
A 2 R BUED
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A resolution will be submitted at the annual general
meeting of the Company to re-appoint Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu as the auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

CHENG HOP FAI
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong
22 June 2018

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BHNEREEERAR

37



38

B % BIRD R

Independent Auditor’s Report

Deloitte
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G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
RRBEBREEERAA
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

s
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We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of G-Vision International (Holdings) Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as “the Group”) set out on pages 44 to 99, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2018, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 March 2018, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirement
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

AITERBEEFESTMAGRH2BEE
SHER (BB L) ETER - A17
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G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAF

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

AREZFHEREANTZERAE R
REAPGEEMBBRRECR/ERZSE

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgment, were of most significance in our

I o RTERERBESESUBERERBE audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
BN EEEWGIEERER  mMAEgtit current period. These matters were addressed in the
LEHEBHREEER context of our audit of the consolidated financial

statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

ARELRER
Key Audit Matter

WA &R

Revenue recognition

ERNEBER 2 RSE  ATRETBEBEKZ
WAR R —THBAREREE -

We identified recognition of revenue from
restaurant operations as a key audit matter due
to the volume of transactions of restaurant
operations.

BHE_Z-)\F=ZA=1+—HLFE RKa8H
1B U A 4986,926,0008 T (A BHEKRE
thEEKAR) - KB BWARRSHERR
HE o

For the year ended 31 March 2018, revenue
from restaurant operations amounted to
approximately HK$86,926,000 (consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income). Vast majority of
revenue was settled in cash or by credit card.

RMNBERNMERARERERETREE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RITRBBEBRASE 2 IRF B
Our procedures in relation to revenue from restaurant
operations included:

o THRWAEBRIEYN B HIW AR 2 HE T
EITAIR

e Obtaining an understanding of the revenue
business processes and testing key controls over
revenue recognition;

e WERHERELEMEEZEZMIVERET AR
HIPARE &

e Checking recorded revenue, on a sample basis,
to daily sales report and relevant sales invoice;
and

o ETEBEAMUKEHASEHRAER -
e Performing data analysis to identify unusual
patterns of revenue.
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OTHER INFORMATION
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The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements
does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAF

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BMNEREEERAF
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT

OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)
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Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

communicate with those charged with governance

regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control

that we identify during our audit.

AOIMAEEERRER  HAXTDE
SERBVMENHABERENR  TEKF
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We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAF
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)
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From the matters communicated with those charged
with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Lo Kin Cheong.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
22 June 2018
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HE —N\&E=H=+—HIL&E For the year ended 31 March 2018
—E-N\F —E—+tF
2018 2017
By E THER FHT
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
WA Revenue 5 86,926 88,305
H Ath W A K E Aty U 2 Other income and other gains 1,520 1,439
ERFEEZHRAR Cost of inventories consumed (27,500) (28,257)
8 Tk A Staff costs (34,938) (33,655)
ZEHS Operating lease rentals (16,023) (16,614)
e Depreciation (37) (31)
HEmEESER Other operating expenses (18,893) (20,195)
ARFIREEMGZ Loss for the year attributable to owners
FEEBE of the Company 6 (8,945) (9,008)
Hap 2 mEU (BAxR) Other comprehensive income (expense)
HENEEF 7 EE Items that may be reclassified
BmEHE subsequently to profit or loss:
AHEEREERNTE Change in fair value of available-for-sale
T BE) investments 327 (18)
ENHBEEHE 2 Reclassification to profit or loss
HEREZBZ upon disposal of available-for-sale
investments - 89
B EARAELE Reclassification adjustment
REZHEEBSE relating to impairment loss on
available-for-sale investments - 572
FEHEMEEKR Other comprehensive income for the year 327 643
RABIRREN 2 Total comprehensive expense
PHEMY B for the year attributable to
owners of the Company (8,618) (8,365)
BREAREEER Loss per share (basic and diluted) 10 (#{LHK0.46 cent) (71LHKO0.46 cent)

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAF
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RZ=ZZ—/\F= A=+—H At 31 March 2018

—E-N\F —T—+F
2018 2017
B 5 FERT FHET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
EMBNEE Non-current assets
Y - BE k&E Property, plant and equipment 11 121 118
AHEERE Available-for-sale investments 12 = 1,110
MERERS Property rental deposits 5,320 —
5,441 1,228
mE & E Current assets
=g Inventories 13 1,217 1,246
B 5 & E 4th fE W 58 Trade and other receivables 14 2,302 6,494
At ERE Available-for-sale investments 12 2,750 3,397
B AR ITER Pledged bank deposits 15 414 413
RERITER Short-term bank deposits 15
- REZNERBHEA — with original maturity over
=& A three months 70,366 46,945
- REFNHA A — with original maturity within
=@ARN three months 7,016 36,359
WITEBEE S Bank balances and cash 15 10,765 10,766
94,830 105,620
mBAE Current liabilities
B 5 & E At fE S 5IE Trade and other payables 16 7,984 7,413
mENE EFE Net current assets 86,846 98,207
BEFE Net assets 92,287 99,435
IR A % G Capital and reserves
PR Share capital 17 194,631 194,631
i Reserves (102,344) (95,196)
R Total equity 92,287 99,435
HNFAMEEFOEZEEHBRRNZ The consolidated financial statements on pages 44 to 99

E-N\FNA-t+-_BHEE=eH ETER
EHE - BATINEERERES

BEIE

Cheng Hop Fai
EF

DIRECTOR
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by:

LIS E<d

Cheng Pak Man, Anita

)
DIRECTOR

were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 22 June 2018 and are signed on its behalf
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HZ==—Z—/)\fF= A=+ —H For the year ended 31 March 2018

R Bl )
ke RGEE  RARE  EfER ERE  ZREB a5
Investment Share
Share Share Capital ~ revaluation options  Accumlated
capital ~ premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
ThL TAT Thn TAT Thn TAT Thr
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
(//Wﬂ:?/y
(note)
RZF-E0A-H At 1 April 2016 194,631 88,794 84,123 (643) 5471 (264,576) 107,800
EEER Loss for the year - - - - - (9,008) (9,008)
TEHERBEATEZES  Change n fair value of
available-for-sale investments - - - (18) - - (18)
ENABENEZHILE Redlassification to profit or loss upon disposal of
kEZEA avallable-for-sale investments = - - 89 - - 8
ENNRARTRLEREY Reclassification adjustment relating to impairment
HEEE loss on available-for-sale investments - - - 572 - - 572
FEXENE (RX) 2% Total comprehensive income (expense)
for the year - - - 643 - (9,008) (8,365)
nEGRE, B Transfer upon forfeiture of share options - - - - (2,004) 2,004 -
R-E-+E=f=1-A At 31 March 2017 194,631 88,794 84,123 - 3,467 (271,580) 99,435
EEER Loss for the year - - - - - (8,945) (8,945)
AHHEREHATE & Change in fair value of
available-for-sale investments - - - 307 - - 37
EERENG (Rx) a8 Total comprehensive income (expense)
for the year - - - 307 - (8,945) (8,618)
BRAEGEENRHBERNF  Recognition of equity-settled
share-based payments - - - - 1470 - 1470
BRELN Lapse of share options - - - - (3,467) 3,467 =
RZZ-\%=A=1-A At 31 March 2018 194,631 88,794 84,123 327 1,470 (277,058) 92,287
Bzt : REBZRRANGE  BAEBR—ALALT Note: The capital reserve of the Group arose as a result of the

FHAETEAR  ARAFRAETRAAE
T {8 A2 M Y B A ) A AN AR T BB T AR 2

'8

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAF

group reorganisation in October 1992. It represents the
difference between the aggregate nominal amount of the
share capital issued by the Company in exchange for the
aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of

subsidiaries.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HEZZ—\F=A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2018
—E-N\F —tF
2018 2017
FTER FAET
HK$'000 HK$'000
R Operating activities
FANEE Loss for the year (8,945) (9,008)
W Adjustments for:
) S A Interest income (1,230) (1,353)
e Depreciation 37 31
AELHERE Y Realised (gain) loss on disposal of
2315 () BB available-for-sale investments (75) 89
(BmE)AMHEERE 2 (Reversal of) impairment loss on
FEEE available-for-sale investments (114) 572
ERRHNER Share-based payment expenses 1,470 -
EEESBHAIZ Operating cash flows before
REFERE movements in working capital (8,857) (9,669)
FERD Decrease in inventories 29 213
B 5 N B R IR (Increase) decrease in trade and other
(38 0) & receivables (1,128) 528
B 5 K H A 7RB Increase (decrease) in trade and other
1270 (8 0) payables 571 4105
FARKREER 2 REFHE Net cash used in operating activities (9,385) (9,033)
REED Investing activities
ERRIBA RSN Withdrawal of short-term deposits with
=@ Az EBHFER original maturity over three months 46,945 87,451
Ui 12 K b P& W 5k Settlement of other receivables = 11,727
RORFRERE Withdrawal of investments in certificates
of deposit = 5,866
2 U F B Interest received 1,230 1,353
€ T 1 40 B 12 2B Proceeds from disposal of
availble-for-sale investments 2,273 1,176
(FR)IREE EARTER (Placement) withdrawal of pledged bank
deposits (1) 599
FRRIBMBAZH=EA Placement of short-term deposits with
2 B ETE R original maturity over three months (70,366) (100,889)
BEVE BELERE Purchase of property, plant and
equipment (40) (58)
(AR)RERETHZ2ELFE  Net cash (used in) from investing activities (19,959) 7,225
BeRHEEEHEEHR Net decrease in cash and
W cash equivalents (29,344) (1,808)
FHzReRkBLEMEER Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the year 47,125 48,933
FR2EeRBEEEER Cash and cash equivalents at end
of the year 17,781 47,125
BeRBESESEEBEHRON Analysis of balance of cash and
cash equivalents
RESMAA=ERAZ Short-term bank deposits with original
Eﬁﬁfﬁﬂf,m maturity within three months 7,016 36,359
RITERKRR S Bank balances and cash 10,765 10,766
17,781 47,125
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_T—\F=H=+—HILFZ For the year ended 31 March 2018

WCA 7 \J

GENERAL

AARIRBREFAMKLASRRE
ﬁﬁﬂ CHBROEBEABERSFA
AR (TEERFT]) £ c RARIZ &
T&Eﬁ KERRAR AN RBE X
Eﬁ%?ﬂﬁﬁ/ﬁ_LZKong Fai International
Limited e AR Al 2 XM EEEFE
EEMB MU BERANFRIATE
B — B2 5E o

o|| O

ARAB/-—REERB DA - EH B
NACEBEBERBRKEEFR
AN 2 B -
RNFMBBRIGAET(ET]) 2
5 BILMABARRRIZWMEEH -

BRMBHREED ([ ERMBEIR
HEA ) AT REBIT R 2B

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an
exempted company with limited liability and its
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Its parent
and ultimate holding company is Kong Fai
International Limited (“Kong Fai”), which is
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. The
addresses of the registered office and principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed in
the corporate information section of the annual
report.

The Company acts as an investment holding
company. Its subsidiaries are principally engaged in
the operation of Chinese restaurants in Hong Kong
which specialise in Chiu Chow cuisine.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is the same as
the functional currency of the Company.
APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

RAFEERINEMZEBURBEE
BB RT &<
AEBRAFEEREANUNTHESD
eHMA A ([BASFAE]) BF
Zé;/%ﬁﬁf% Lt/gﬁl” FITZK&%;/EE
TR (TEA LR -

B gt L4 THRE
EYEPAHEN
BE G R RAEREEERE
FI12R2BAA ERBEE
BERBREER BRNBREER
FI12R2ERA “E-mER
—E-RFHR
FRMEZ BN

RAFEERMB L5 EBMH®EER
REBGHEUBITAHNAEFE R
BEFEANEE 2 BERES LB
R/ % ?éﬁﬁ‘“at&i'ééﬁéﬁllz
BREEHMLBERNEAY

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAF

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following amendments
to HKFRSs and Hong Kong Accounting Standard
("HKAS") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for the
first time in the current year.

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised
Losses

As part of the Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 12

The application of the above amendments to
HKFRSs and HKAS in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group's financial
performance and positions for the current and prior
years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. BEBMBHREED (ERMBER
HEA ) AT REBIT R 2B
(#&)

HE-Z—\F=H=+—8 L% For the year ended 31 March 2018

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

EEMAEHRER BB BREE
B3 5T R BB RT &

REBE W RIEEAER TIEEHEME
AR 2 BEY B REEL T M

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new
and revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are

BT -

BEMBREEAROR SRIA
BEMBASENZSR  EPAOMAREAR
gl
BEMBREENSE R HE
BRUBRERAETE  RRa

% (ARUERETR
ZE2)-HEELR

A (ERRRETR
ZE8)-FRENK

RN BREEEINR
VAT

NERARRHMGHE
FRREE MR

LOSGET TP Y

i

BRI HRE R F EREENBREER
pAHES FIBIERIA]
BRERHKHREE

AFARRBAK)

BEMBREEA RN ARARECRAER
A LS R
BEUBASENEI0R  REFRERESAR
SR LEZBHETEA
EVLyPA TN AE
BEGTRAF195 AL BRAER
A HES
BB gt ERH BELRRAELEL
pA_HES KR
SRR BEMBREER
pA HES “E-mEE
“E-NEHE
PAVET TS
BB G ENRA0R RENF ER
pA_HES
BEMBREER BEMBREER
pA HES “2-1%%
“E-LEHE
LR
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not yet effective:
HKFRS 9
HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16
HKFRS 17
HK(IFRIC) - Int 22
HK(IFRIC) - Int 23

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 19
Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 40

Amendments to HKFRSs

Financial Instruments'

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments'

Leases?

Insurance Contracts*

Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration'

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments?

Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions'

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts'

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation?
Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?
Plan Amendment, Curtailment
or Settlement?

Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures?

As part of the Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle!

Transfers of Investment
Property!

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015 - 2017 Cycle?

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BMNEREEERAF
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HE-_T—\F=H=+—HILFZ For the year ended 31 March 2018

2. ERUBBREED([FBHER 2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
==
=

B ) ZFET R EIEFT R 2 FER KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(&) (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

EEMESRER BB BREE New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet

A3l REEIERT 4 (1) effective (Continued)

g R-ZE—NF— A —HEZERBZ g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
FEHRERR - January 2018.

2 RZE-NF-A—BImzERRKBZ 2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
FREBRERR - January 2019.

3 REFEEZ Az BABZFE E Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date
BARIAERK - to be determined.

¢ ORI —F-HA-—BHZERBZ 4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
FEHRERR - January 2021.

B NPTt E B SRS R R Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs and

ZHTR] RAERT RSN » AN Q A &= = 78 8 Interpretations mentioned below, the directors of

ERmMEEME B FREEL B the Company anticipate that the application of all

B2z REET AR RR B kK 4z other new and amendments to HKFRSs and

EUMBmMRIWEEBRERNTE - Interpretations will have no material impact on the

consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable
future.

ERMBREEAFSRI2RMIA] HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

EREMERELERFIRSIACHE HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the

E S2aE —KEhestREx classification and measurement of financial assets,

FeRmEERERESD BRSO financial liabilities, general hedge accounting and

FE ° impairment requirements for financial assets.

HEAEEBFBEzEBEBSYERELELSE Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant to

O EERTEH MM T the Group are:

e FIEBEAYUBWMEENFIR e all recognised financial assets that are within
HBEANZEEREBREEHRKE the scope of HKFRS 9 are required to be
BARBENAKXATEFEZE A subsequently measured at amortised cost or
Ems RENAKERELNIRS fair value. Specifically, debt investments that
mERERRN THAELALKE are held within a business model whose
MEERSTRHMAEEASF B objective is to collect the contractual cash
NEOWEHNRERENEBIR flows, and that have contractual cash flows
& —RERSTHEERE that are solely payments of principal and
HEBERAHE - RERN AR interest on the principal outstanding are
WRIGHRERENHESHE generally measured at amortised cost at the
ENEBEATHENEBLL end of subsequent accounting periods. Debt
B UREANERSREERE instruments that are held within a business
EENREREARAINERE model whose objective is achieved both by
EREBEEAEHMNENEBH L collecting contractual cash flows and selling
B —RUATEFAREMEE financial assets, and that have contractual
W rEEemEELRNE terms that give rise on specified dates to cash
et BHERZEAFTETE - It flows that are solely payments of principal and
SN AR IE B BB IS S E B 59 interest on the principal amount outstanding,
5t EEE N {EH N Al mEE are generally measured at fair value through
REME2HEWEEY I IEFIEER other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”). All
EHNREREAFENEREZ other financial assets are measured at their fair

EREWA—RNIBRER - value at subsequent accounting periods. In

addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make an
irrevocable election to present subsequent
changes in the fair value of an equity
investment (that is not held for trading) in
other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit
or loss.

50 G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED ZR B EEAERA R 2017/18 Annual Report %
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ERMBHREER ([FBHBR
HEA ) AT REBIT R 2B
(#&)

HE2—_Z— \F=A=1+—H L% For the year ended 31 March 2018

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

EEMBRELEANFRIEHMIT A

(&)

s MERMBEEREMS  BEE
BT ERFEIVRIB T REELRE
EEREAGERR  BBMK
HBELENFIRAETHBHEER
BEEEAFE AHEEEESE
ARTERBN T REBDHES
EEEBREZERHGEEBEZ
EPAR  ARREERRB
RERBARZEF -T2 H
ABBRECEEEHRT ERER
EEEBE-

BEAEBRHZE_T - N\F=FH
=+t—HHNEeRIAKEAREREK
R ARREFRHERAEATEY
BHREEUNFIREEEUTBEER

i
Z

I

D EMEE -

e IMEBIAWSEAUAFE
ATEMAHEERE (WK E12
Frigd)  2SEEH ITATNIRE
ZEBRBMAHNRETERRNA
AMBEHE LTEBEIAZ ¥
BERXFE SEESNIEZRNIE
FTHEHMEAZRERE &5
SHAERAEELASHE - E
it EREB T IF®RE EAF9
g PTMEBSTIABEEN
FVTOCIHETTR B2 WAR L
MESHEDEERIEET A
B REREREERBEHEZAF
BRmEBEERBEEETHER

= N/
B2
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HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (Continued)

e in relation to the impairment of financial assets,
HKFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss
model, as opposed to an incurred credit loss
model under HKAS 39. The expected credit loss
model requires an entity to account for
expected credit losses and changes in those
expected credit losses at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition. In other words, it is no longer
necessary for a credit event to have occurred
before credit losses are recognised.

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and risk
management policies as at 31 March 2018, the
directors of the Company anticipate the following
potential impact on initial application of HKFRS 9:

Classification and measurement:

e Llisted debt instruments classified as
available-for-sale investments carried at fair
value as disclosed in note 12: these are held
within a business model whose objective is
achieved both by collecting contractual cash
flows and selling the listed debt instruments in
the open market, and the contractual terms
give rise to cash flows on specified dates that
are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal outstanding. Accordingly, the
listed debt instruments will continue to be
subsequently measured at FVTOCI upon the
application of HKFRS 9, and the fair value gains
or losses accumulated in the investments
revaluation reserve will continue to be
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss when
the listed debentures are derecognised or
reclassified;

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BMNEREEERAF
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HE-_T—\F=H=+—HILFZ For the year ended 31 March 2018

ERMBHREER ([FBHBR
HEA ) AT REBIT R 2B

==
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]

—~
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

EAMEREERFER S/ T A

(&)

ZHEAGE - (F)

o NMIFE12FTINEE - DB AR
EREVURNFEFEZ ETK
RFEH ZEBLHEDNTEEEHK
HAREBEET BT BHREERFI
SRIRFVTOCIEI ZE - R=Z— \F
MA—BH: EHREHRTHATF
1B Y 2= =k 85 18 18 5 10327,000%
TRBEBEEAVBREERZFE9
RABHENR I EEER 50
WITEBFETR o thFEHOEH
FEXEBR  EREMEZAERK
mREERZeE  BfTeyEs

T W 25 4R RE o

. FARMSRAERSRMAEKS
B R R EE S G RS
398 8 2 AR 8 -

1

—RME  ARABEFRPEREE
MEHRELENFIRNAREEEE
18 301G B BN 5 [ Y N 5% [ 4 8 5 X
AAEZEMEEEMBERKREE
ZIEEBERUNREBRARERERE
BB HREERFIREMFIERE
ZEBIRAMELEER®E -

REARBEFONE  HAKES
RAEBMEEBERES  AXAKER
—E-\FMHA-BE THERZ R
HEEREREE LT EREISR
HEFNEMERFIAZEFEER
RBBERMRFZEBABERER -
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HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (Continued)

Classification and measurement: (Continued)

e Listed equity securities classified as
available-for-sale investments carried at fair
value as disclosed in note 12: these securities
qualified for designation as measured at
FVTOCI under HKFRS 9, however, the fair value
gains or losses accumulated in the investments
revaluation reserve amounting to HK$327,000
as at 1 April 2018 will no longer be
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss under
HKFRS 9, which is different from the current
treatment. This will affect the amounts
recognised in the Group's profit or loss and
other comprehensive income but will not affect
total comprehensive income.

e All other financial assets and financial liabilities
will continue to be measured on the same
bases as are currently measured under HKAS
39.

Impairment

In general, the directors of the Company anticipate
that the application of the expected credit loss
model of HKFRS 9 will result in earlier provision of
credit losses which are not yet incurred in relation
to the Group’s financial assets measured at
amortised costs and other items that subject to the
impairment provisions upon application of HKFRS 9
by the Group.

Based on the assessment by the directors of the
Company, if the expected credit loss model were to
be applied by the Group, the accumulated amount
of impairment loss to be recognised by Group as at
1 April 2018 would be not materially different
compared with the accumulated amount recognised
under HKAS 39 mainly attributable to expected
credit losses provision on trade and other
receivables.
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2.

HE2—_Z— \F=A=1+—H L% For the year ended 31 March 2018

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

EEMBREERNFISHRIZEFEN
LN
BEMBHREERE1SRERM - &
Y BERBUEPANMELMNIAE
TERENE-—2ERKRN - FEM
58 &5 B 1557 B 0 A R B IR
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F18R AL - FB G ERIE115R
[BREaK ] REMERE -

BEVBHRESER B 15RO RA
SERMERZWAZBEIZERA
MATPEERERIRB 228 T
BRrRZEREHARRZFTE R
IRGEEESHRE - AWM S -
AR AR RER A Z B E 28

s F1¥ BMEHARFHNAHN
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s FE3IH: EERFEMR

s FAF BRHEBOEE
P B 49 & 715
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G HERBA
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HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers”

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in
accounting for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current
revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18
“Revenue”, HKAS 11 "Construction Contracts” and
the related Interpretations when it becomes
effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity
should recognise revenue to depict the transfer of
promised goods or services to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those
goods or services. Specifically, the Standard
introduces a 5-step approach to revenue
recognition:

e Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

e Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in
the contract

e Step 3: Determine the transaction price

e Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

e Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the
entity satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e.
when ‘control’ of the goods or services underlying
the particular performance obligation is transferred
to the customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has
been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific
scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are
required by HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS
15 in relation to the identification of performance
obligations, principal versus agent considerations, as
well as licensing application guidance.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

EEMBHREERNFISRIZFFEN
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HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” (Continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of HKFRS 15 in the future may result in
more disclosures, however, the directors of the
Company do not anticipate that the application of
HKFRS 15 will have a material impact on the timing
and amounts of revenue recognised in the
respective reporting periods.

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for
the identification of lease arrangements and
accounting treatments for both lessors and lessees.
HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS 17 “Leases” and the
related interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts
on the basis of whether an identified asset is
controlled by a customer. Distinctions of operating
leases and finance leases are removed for lessee
accounting, and is replaced by a model where a
right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability have
to be recognised for all leases by lessees, except for
short-term leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost
and subsequently measured at cost (subject to
certain exceptions) less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses, adjusted for any
remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease
liability is initially measured at the present value of
the lease payments that are not paid at that date.
Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for
interest and lease payments, as well as the impact
of lease modifications, amongst others. For the
classification of cash flows, operating lease
payments are presented as operating cash flows.
Upon application of HKFRS 16, lease payments in
relation to lease liability will be allocated into a
principal and an interest portion which will be
presented as financing cash flows by the Group.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
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HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 16.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group has
non-cancellable operating lease commitments of
HK$48,460,000 as disclosed in note 19. A
preliminary assessment indicates that these
arrangements will meet the definition of a lease.
Upon application of HKFRS 16, the Group will
recognise a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability in respect of all these leases unless they
qualify for low value or short-term leases.

In addition, the Group currently considers
refundable rental deposits paid of HK$5,330,000 as
rights and obligations under leases to which HKAS
17 applies. Based on the definition of lease
payments under HKFRS 16, such deposits are not
payments relating to the right to use the underlying
assets, accordingly, the carrying amounts of such
deposits may be adjusted to amortised cost and
such adjustments are considered as additional lease
payments. Adjustments to refundable rental
deposits paid would be included in the carrying
amount of right-of-use assets.

Furthermore, the application of new requirements
may result in changes in measurement, presentation
and disclosure as indicated above.
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The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for
available-for-sale investments that are measured at
fair values at the end of the reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account
the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/
or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that
are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based
payment”, leasing transactions that are within the
scope of HKAS 17 “Leases”, and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not
fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2
“Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36
“Impairment of assets”.
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Basis of preparation (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2
or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the
fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

e level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement
date;

e level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and
entities controlled by the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved where the
Company:

e has power over the investee;

e is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.
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Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year
are included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when
the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with the Group’'s
amounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in
full on consolidation.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for goods sold
and services provided in the normal course of
business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue
can be reliably measured; when it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the Group and
when specific criteria have been met for each of the
Group’s activities, as described below.

Revenue from restaurant operations is recognised
when goods are sold and services are rendered.
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Revenue recognition (Continued)

Interest income is accrued on a time apportionment
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and
at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the
rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the
cost of assets less their residual values over their
extimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of
the reporting period, with the effect of any changes
in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in
profit or loss.
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Impairment

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its assets to
determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss.
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Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined
on a first-in, first-out method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories
less costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following
specified categories: available-for-sale (“AFS")
financial assets and loans and receivables. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of
the financial assets and is determined at the time of
initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales
of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.
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Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated as available-for-sale or are not
classified as (a) loans and receivables, (b) held-to
maturity investments or (c) financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that
are classified as AFS financial assets and are traded
in an active market are measured at fair value at the
end of the reporting period. Changes in the carrying
amount of AFS debt instruments relating to interest
income calculated using the effective interest
method are recognised in profit or loss. Dividends
on AFS equity investments are recognised in profit
or loss when the Group’s right to receive the
dividends is established. Other changes in the
carrying amount of AFS financial assets are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated under the heading of investment
revaluation reserve. When the investment is
disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in
the investment revaluation reserve is reclassified to
profit or loss (see the accounting policy in respect
of impairment loss on financial assets below).

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to
initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
trade and other receivables, pledged bank deposits,
short-term bank deposits and bank balances and
cash) are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any impairment (see
accounting policy on impairment of financial assets
below).
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Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument
and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective
interest basis for debt instruments.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of the reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when
there is objective evidence that, as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For AFS equity investments, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the security
below its cost is considered to be objective evidence
of impairment.
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Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

e Dbreach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;
or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as
trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to be
impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for
impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence
of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could
include the Group’s past experience of collecting
payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the average credit
period and observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

The amount of impairment is measured as the
difference between the financial asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is
reduced by the impairment loss directly for all
financial assets with the exception of trade
receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Changes
in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade
receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.
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Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss in that period.

If in a subsequent period, the amount of
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the investment at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

In respect of AFS equity investments, impairment
losses previously recognised in profit or loss are not
reversed through profit or loss. Any increase in fair
value subsequent to an impairment loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated under the heading of investment
revaluation reserve. In respect of AFS debt
investments, impairment losses are subsequently
reversed through profit or loss if an increase in the
fair value of the investment can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the recognition
of the impairment loss.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BMNEREEERAF

65



T A B IS ERR MY EE
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_T—\F=H=+—HILFZ For the year ended 31 March 2018

3. FTEEFTER (A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2R T H (&)

THEERKRET A
EEERETCEEARETAER
BEANLTHEZARES@ME F &R E
TANTERSEAS R A EHARE
TH-

Pt T A
BETAEEAEGH EEAERE

E(BHRMAERBIR) 2 MRS
REEFET 2 IRETATIZE WA
15 BRIR R B 1R AT RS T AR RE R

TREE
TREE(BRESERNREA) ERXHE
BABBRN R ILBHK AT E

o

BEBRA R
BERNFETNAES B A G HK
ARZABBREROENBRAXHN T
& BN RTIN )2 HERE - #51h
AFRRBEEH (BREBKERF X
ERHFONABECHNXERER X
SRAREMBERITE) RUBE
& H) TR HE A F R B A (fin 5@
) ERTREREFENFE -

MERXIRERN R EERER

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAF

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade payables are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective
interest basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
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Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset
and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liability when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between
the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit
before tax’ as reported in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.
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HE-_T—\F=H=+—HILFZ For the year ended 31 March 2018

3. FTEEFTER (A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
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Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which
to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of the reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

BiE (%)

EXEHBAEERBBENZERNREH
MEEHERMRER LERHOR
R(EBOE) REBNEHRAGBSE
SEREESERMEERNHEGE -

ELXEHBAABREENGFERRAE
ERHREHEAERESKRESEE
HEENMBEREETANREEE -

A REEH BN BT R
EHEAEMEANGNERRNER
BRZBEBABEEERIN EULBER
T HHMEEEHAEED AR EME
S E RN R R -

S

REGsENEEERBN MG HRE
B A ERBINEE BB UG " (51
B)VETHNRS BRXHHENRS
MEER - RBEHMEEER - A5
BIEMNERHBRZAMNBITER
EMBRE - mAFEARILAINEF
ENFEEBRBEREEAFEERN
BITERBHBE - WINEBEXN
AENFEKEE TERENKRE -

2017/18 Annual Report %

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset is
realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or
loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case, the current and
deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of
exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on that date.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.
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3. FTEEFTER (A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
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Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of
monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise. Exchange differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items
carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for
the period except for exchange differences arising
on the retranslation of non-monetary items in
respect of which gains and losses are recognised
directly in other comprehensive income, in which
cases, the exchange differences are also recognised
directly in other comprehensive income.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term,
except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed. Contingent rentals arising under
operating leases are recognised as an expense in
the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to
enter into operating leases, such incentives are
recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit of
incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental
expense on a straight-line basis, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of
the time pattern in which economic benefits from
the leased assets are consumed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
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Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
plans are recognised as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

Share-based payment arrangements
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees
and others providing similar services are measured
at the fair value of the equity instruments at the
grant date.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the
equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on
a straight-line over the vesting period, based on the
Group’'s estimate of equity instruments that will
eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in
equity (share options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of equity
instruments expected to vest. The impact of the
revision of the original estimates, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative
expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to share options reserve.

For share options that vest immediately at the date
of grant, the fair value of the share options granted
is expensed immediately in profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will
be transferred to share premium. When the share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are
still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will
be transferred to retained profits (accumulated
losses).
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HE-_T—\F=H=+—HILFZ For the year ended 31 March 2018
4. FEFRBEEMTRIR 4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY

EASESHBRENERSGEEAN - W In the application of the Group's accounting
B .&3)5er RANREZEEZHEEHHMK policies, which are described in note 3, the directors
IR T B %E’]ﬁﬁﬂg EMEREEEE of the Company are required to make estimates and
HAETAMERER - HarMAERRKREE assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
1A JEE S A B M1 4% R 75 A8 A ) HL i and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
=Z - BRERAEHEEFBABADT other sources. The estimates and associated
[ ° assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.
NTERERBEHRAAEER ABXEF The following are key sources of estimation
B TE it 51 2ROIR T 7] A2 28 350 M B ISR uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
BEzEENBEEREELRREEXARE may have a significant risk of causing a material
|- Y adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.
E R E Deferred taxation
RZE—NF=A=+—"H &X&5EH At 31 March 2018, the Group had unused tax losses
i 5 N B A 7R 85 48 49185,337,000 of HK$185,337,000 (2017: HK$175,111,000)
BT (ZZE—+HF:175,111,000/%8 available for offset against future profits. No
7o) ATAREHEBEREN - ARY deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
B 184 F R B 1F =M TROR] - B B such unused tax losses due to the unpredictability
Bz ABARIBEEEERLELER of future profit streams. In cases where the actual
BHEE HFRARBRERBENZRE future profits generated are greater than expected,
B ORERBEEEREBEERNER a material recognition of deferred tax assets may
WEARESHRNFTABRZR ° arise, which will be recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which such recognition takes place.

5. WARDERE R 5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
WA T FANNEBIRMEE & &R Revenue represents the net amounts received or
EHRTMEEEEENEBER B receivable for goods sold and services rendered by
ok JE W FRIE o the Group, net of discounts and sales related taxes,

during the year.
RELFEEEARE (ZHITE Financial information provided to the chief
E)EABTBREERSPBRER 2 operating decision maker, being the executive
Bl DIRBEAER 7 BEKS S directors, for performance assessment and resources
REAFEAR - BB IR G 1B m R EAM allocation is based on the overall operating results
TEHWBERREEVBERAE - FH and financial position of the Group which constitute
Z W EEE 2 DB i BB Al 2E 4R the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
SEEZINEMEZEIKEREY ZE4E other comprehensive income and the consolidated
B o statement of financial position. Financial
information regarding the segment for both years
can be made reference to the results as set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.
i & & R Geographical information
HAREMFE ZINRBARIERBE As all external revenue for both years and
BAREHUREE Bt BERR non-current assets are either derived from or
BWARIEREE E(EH DT o located in Hong Kong, an analysis of the
consolidated revenue and non-current assets by
geographical location is not presented.
FEEFER Information about major customers
AEBNREMFYEZFERBAER There is no customer contributing over 10% of the
WAZ10% ° total revenue of the Group for both years.
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HE-Z—\F=H=+—8 L% For the year ended 31 March 2018

FEBIB 6. LOSS FOR THE YEAR
—E-N\F —E—+tF
2018 2017
FHET F7& 7T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEEBEECS R GIA) Loss for the year has been arrived
T3)&IE : at after charging (crediting):
B2 e (KiE7) Directors’ emoluments (note 7) 5,820 4,813
Hi B8 THA (BFEEK  Other staff costs, including
BARE) retirement benefits costs 29,118 28,842
488 T kAR Total staff costs 34,938 33,655
ZEE 2 BN & Auditor’s remuneration 430 410
PE N, (UWzs) 518 % 58 Net exchange (gain) loss included in
(B 5T A H fth 48 & B 7AK) other operating expenses (205) 671
FEUA - Interest income from:
—AHEERE — Available-for-sale investments (123) (163)
—Hfth — Others (1,107) (1,190)
A HEREREER Reversal of impairment loss on
2 [o] #8 available-for-sale debt investments (114) -
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HE-_T—\F=H=+—HILFZ For the year ended 31 March 2018
7. BEERTHER NS 7. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

EMOLUMENTS

ENXENESZHMESFBENT

Details of the emoluments paid or payable to the
directors were as follows:

AR 43
ek RHKEFN  RER
HtE A BE Bxf

Salaries Retirement Share
#%& andother benefits based k)
Fee  benefits costs payments Total

TER TER TER TER TER
HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$S'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000

BE-_Z-N\F For the year ended
ZA=+-BLEE 31 March 2018
BTES: Executive directors:
HeE Mr. Cheng Hop Fai - 2,280 - 297 2,577
E[ [ AR Ms. Cheng Pak Ming, Judy - 360 18 297 675
578 Ms. Cheng Pak Man, Anita - 720 18 297 1,035
EHE Ms. Cheng Pak Lai, Lily - 720 18 297 1,035
- 4,080 54 1,188 5,322
BUEHTES: Independent non-executive
directors:
7 a Mr. Law Toe Ming 72 - - 94 166
ERE Mr. Mark Yiu Tong, William 72 - - 94 166
2l Mr. Leung Tai Chiu 72 - - 94 166
216 - - 282 498
s Total 216 4,080 54 1,470 5,820
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BHE-_ZT—N\F=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2018
7. EERTHARZHME (&) 7. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Fek RBRAEEA

H 38 7 B

Salaries Retirement
#£ and other  benefits k]
Fee benefits costs Total
FTHER TAER THER FTHERT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BE-_ZT—+tF=H For the year ended

=t+—HLtFE 31 March 2017

HITES: Executive directors:

BEE Mr. Cheng Hop Fai - 2,286 - 2,286

ZHH Ms. Cheng Pak Ming, Judy - 360 18 378

BHHK Ms. Cheng Pak Man, Anita - 720 18 738

BHE Ms. Cheng Pak Lai, Lily - 720 18 738

R=B (#it) Mr. Zhang Yunkun (note) - 440 17 457

- 4,526 71 4,597
BYFHTES: Independent non-executive
directors:

EEH Mr. Law Toe Ming 72 = = 72

ERE Mr. Mark Yiu Tong, William 72 - — 72

REiE Mr. Leung Tai Chiu 72 - - 72
216 - - 216

st Total 216 4,526 71 4,813

Bt : R-E—+E=A—HEE- Note: Resigned on 1 March 2017.
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HE-_T—\F=H=+—HILFZ For the year ended 31 March 2018

7. EERTHARZME ()

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

EXHTRBTES M T ERRESE
EEARABMAEEZHAREHZR
BER o

EXFARBYIFNTEFTIHEER
HEEER/RRNAEFTMREMEZRE
GELEI

BEEREERARRITTHRARE Z B
seEERLAZMEES -

RALEME  EFWEBETAME -

8. EEM=

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were mainly for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group.

The independent non-executive directors’
emoluments shown above were mainly for their
services as directors of the Company.

Mr. Cheng Hop Fai is also the chief executive of the
Company and his emoluments disclosed above
included those for services rendered by him as the
chief executive.

None of the directors waived any emoluments in
both years.

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

AEERSHFMZRAMLALH - Hf
= (ZF—tF Of) RARAIH
TES (AR EXHMETARE) -

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments
in the Group, three (2017: four) were executive
directors of the Company whose emoluments are

BRTALTZEEN2OT - included in the disclosures in note 7 above. The
emoluments of the remaining individual for the year
was as follows:

—ZE-N\F —E—+F

2018 2017

THExT FETT

HK$'000 HK$'000

e hEAMEF Salaries and other benefits 1,008 602
B R AR AR AR Retirement benefits costs 18 _
1,026 602

REMFARA LAEBZHME IR
1,000,000/ 7T °

REMERN  AEEYEFAZ AR
BHAL(BRES) XAMEESN
BAREE 2 By LBERME -

7 6 G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAF

The emoluments of the aforesaid employees were
less than HK$1,000,000 in both years.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the five
highest paid individuals, including directors, as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office in both years.
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HE2—_Z— \F=A=1+—H L% For the year ended 31 March 2018

TAXATION

9. 1|
REMER ARARARENEA
AW EERT aF @ B EBELSRE

MR P IRETIAER -

R BRakEtEHKERAXRF

No provision for taxation has been made in the
consolidated financial statements as the Company
and its subsidiaries have no assessable profit for
both years.

The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the

BB EERHAI SR 2 HEROT ¢ loss for the year per the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as
follows:

—E-N\F —E—tF

2018 2017

TERT FET

HK$'000 HK$'000

FEEBE Loss for the year (8,945) (9,008)
BAMFGHRTE16.5% Tax at the domestic income tax
(ZE—+F:16.5%) rate of 16.5% (2017: 16.5%)

FECHIE (1,476) (1,486)

N FEN R IE S Tax effect of expenses not deductible

2B & for tax purpose 272 232

BERHRAZRIAT £ Tax effect of income not taxable

for tax purpose (256) (223)

AERREBEZRIEZE  Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 1,473 1,254

Hth Others (13) 223

FREHIE Taxation for the year - -

R-E—NE=ZA=+—H AEH
WA A BRI 8 R 2R i FI) 2 1 R B
FA T T8 B 18 49185,337,00008 T (=&
—+ 4 : 175,111,000/ 7T) - AR K
BE T TE R AR FI SRR - MU BE A R
PRAREREERRELCHBEE - FT
BEEBUREMFERNERPLEE o

2017/18 Annual Report %

At 31 March 2018, the Group had unused tax losses
of HK$185,337,000 (2017: HK$175,111,000)
available for offset against future profits. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
such unused tax losses due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams. All the losses may be
carried forward indefinitely for both years.
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HE-_T—\F=H=+—HILFZ For the year ended 31 March 2018
10. B E#E 10. LOSS PER SHARE

AR E R R 83 B 18 T AR 1B LA N SR The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share is

T based on the following data:
—E-N\F —E—+F
2018 2017
THERT FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEER Loss for the year (8,945) (9,008)

K& EE
Number of shares
—E-N\F ZE—tF
2018 2017
ARFTEERERAREE Weighted average number of
BB 7 LB AR InAE 15 & ordinary shares for the purposes
of calculating basic and diluted

loss per share 1,946,314,108 1,946,314,108
HRRIZITEERESERERER The calculation of diluted loss per share for both
By MEAE2INEMFEZER years does not assume the exercise of share options
BEEERTERBRTEBARE- as their assumed exercise would result in a decrease

in loss per share.
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HE-Z—\F=H=+—8 L% For the year ended 31 March 2018

11. Y - BENLEZE 11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
HKMR
BERE
Furniture and
restaurant
equipment
FA7T
HK$'000
R{E COST
RZE—XR"FEMA—AH At 1 April 2016 15,570
NE Additions 58
H e Disposals (23)
RZE—+tF=A=+—H At 31 March 2017 15,605
NE Additions 40
RZE—N\FE=A=+—H At 31 March 2018 15,645
wERME DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT
RZZE—XRFMA—AH At 1 April 2016 15,479
FEBE Provided for the year 31
H £ B 8 Eliminated on disposals (23)
—E—+H=A=+—H At 31 March 2017 15,487
FEEE Provided for the year 37
RZZE—N\F=A=+—H At 31 March 2018 15,524
BREE CARRYING VALUES
RZE—N\F=ZA=+—H At 31 March 2018 121
R-ZE—tF=A=+—H At 31 March 2017 118
WEEYE  BERREED 24 Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of
HFSEER G ERAERENES items of property, plant and equipment over their
SEMUSEERR A - LA 2 EFEmM T ¢ estimated useful lives and after taking into account

their estimated residual value, using the straight-line
method, at the following rates per annum:

AR R SE R mHEEH% - N\E Furniture and Over the duration of the
By (LABREG & A %) restaurant leases or 2 - 8 years,
equipment whichever is the shorter
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BE-_Z—)\F=HA=+—H L& For the year ended 31 March 2018

12. At HERE

12. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

AHEERERRE Available-for-sale investments comprise:
—E-N\E —E—+F
2018 2017
THET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
BERYE - At fair value:
BB LEMREES Equity securities listed
in Hong Kong 1,525 1,198
EB EMEKES (M) Debt securities listed
in Hong Kong (note) 1,225 3,309
2,750 4,507
DHTERE Analysed for reporting purposes as
mENEE Current assets 2,750 3,397
EMEBNEE Non-current assets - 1,110
2,750 4,507

Hiat . AEBERAZ EmAIEEE R IR Note:
& & F F| R4 200 (ZF — £ F -

4.200E £4.800F) 5 B - Z R 1B A
RZZE-—N\F+—-—A(ZE—tF:
H-Z—tFWOAZE-_ZT-N\F
+—RA)REEER - AEETEA

UL AR ER D -

The Group holds listed redeemable note with fixed
interest at 4.200% (2017: 4.200% to 4.800%) per
annum. The notes are redeemable at par value in
November 2018 (2017: from April 2017 to November
2018). The Group holds no collateral over this

balance.

13. B8 13. INVENTORIES
—E-NE —E—F
2018 2017
FET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
B R RE Food and beverage items 1,217 1,246

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAF
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14. EZ R HEMEWFIE

HE2—_Z— \F=A=1+—H L% For the year ended 31 March 2018

14. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

B REMERKARIEE S ERK
IH799,0008 . (=& — £ &F :
463,000870) - BEEXEAZUE S
LEREEERE AEELSTEMES
ERBERTAFH608 ZBRERE -

ATRRBEMR - & HRKFIRR
REZAMMBEZ 2 REDIT

Included in trade and other receivables are trade
receivables of HK$799,000 (2017: HK$463,000).
Most of the restaurant customers settle in cash and
credit cards. The Group allows an average credit
period of 60 days to other trade customers
including travel agencies.

The following is an aged analysis of trade
receivables, presented based on the invoice date at
the end of the reporting period:

—E-NE —E—tF

2018 2017

FERT FHET

HK$’000 HK$'000

0-60H 0 — 60 days 799 453
61 -90H 61 — 90 days - 10
799 463

EREEZR—HEABBENGEERE
EPZEREER YEHEPZEER
H-BEEEBEETITRENETEPZEE
B TEBRTERBSRUFALZE
REER UYRSREAHTEREZ
BHRWAFBRERR T - ARREN
ERR - KB E S RAERIAER
FREARILE] - #83899% (T —+ & :
9% ) 2 B 5 MR IB Y &g Bk A
BORME - RIBAKEAELS B8
2B 5 RYGRIARE Al e e @l e
it EARERRERE

2017/18 Annual Report %

Management has delegated a team responsible for
assessing the potential customer’s credit quality and
defining credit limit by customer. Credit limits
attributed to customers are reviewed regularly by
management. Management closely monitors the
credit quality of trade receivables and considers that
trade receivables that are neither past due nor
impaired to be of good credit quality as most trade
receivables were settled within credit period based
on the historical experience. Over 99% (2017: over
99%) of the trade receivables are neither past due
nor impaired. Based on the historical experience of
the Group, trade receivables that are past due are
generally recoverable. Accordingly, no impairment
loss was recognised.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BMNEREEERAF
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HE-_T—\F=H=+—HILFZ For the year ended 31 March 2018
15. IR ITER " BHRITER 15. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/SHORT-TERM
BITHEBRRERES BANK DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES AND
CASH
(a) ERBRITEFEX (a) Pledged bank deposits

16.

ERTRITZERDERE TR
TERTAEEBESEKERSER
E it

ZEEFZENTF0.10E £0.43E
—ZE—LF:0.10EXE043E)
ZETFFEREE -

EHBRTER

% B ER 17 17 20 3% 0.90/F £4.00/
(ZZ—+ 4% :090EE1.402)
ZEEFEFERFS -

(b)

() BITEBERS
RITHERIR0I0EE2.10E (=

T —+EF:0.10EE2.10E) 2

FENFFEFR o

EH5 REMESRIE 16.

(b)

(c)

The amount represents deposits pledged to
banks to secure letter of guarantee of utility
deposits for some of the Group’s restaurant
operations, granted by certain banks.

The deposits carry fixed interest rate ranging
from 0.10% to 0.43% (2017: 0.10% to
0.43%) per annum.

Short-term bank deposits

Short-term bank deposits carry fixed interest
rate ranging from 0.90% to 4.00% (2017:
0.90% to 1.40%) per annum.

Bank balances and cash

Bank balances carry variable interest rate
ranging from 0.10% to 2.10% (2017: 0.10%
to 2.10%) per annum.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

B REMEMNKEREEZEMNK
12,769,000 L (= &F — £ F :
2,377,000 70) ° A R ARREH K
EHRNREERREZHHMESR

Included in trade and other payables are trade
payables of HK$2,769,000 (2017: HK$2,377,000).
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables
presented based on the invoice date at the end of

BREC DA - the reporting period:
—E-N\&F —F—+tF
2018 2017
FTET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
0-60H 0 — 60 days 2,712 2,367
608 A £ More than 60 days 57 10
2,769 2,377

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAF
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HE-Z—\F=H=+—8 L% For the year ended 31 March 2018

17. IR 17. SHARE CAPITAL
gk 4] [N
Number of Share
shares capital
FHBT
HK$'000
BRMEE0.10E T Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
2 ERR
ETE Authorised:
RZZE-—RFOA—H" At 1 April 2016, 31 March 2017
“T—+tH& =ZA=+—H and 31 March 2018
M—Z—NE=A=+—H 5,000,000,000 500,000
BREITRER : Issued and fully paid:
R-ZE—HEMA—H At 1 April 2015 1,939,414,108 193,941
B BT ZEBRE Issue of shares upon exercise of
share options 6,900,000 690
RZT—tF=A=+—HBKk  At31March 2017 and
—E-NF=ZA=1+—H 31 March 2018 1,946,314,108 194,631

2017/18 Annual Report %
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HE-_T—\F=H=+—HILFZ For the year ended 31 March 2018

18. IR #EET & 18. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

ARAIR-_ZF—FFRA+BERTZ
BRRFRIAEG EERRARZBBRN
ARt 8l ([REAERt8l)) - B
RS 2BERHMEE—_T_FTFHA
NBBIE -

BREFS CBNDNERATEER
2EEZARIERMKELERET
i AP VE 7 2 B 2k 22 R

(a) AEBEEMKERAEEKE
ElRhiER IR EE ([(REE
B HEEAMEEXEF (B
HITES  FATEFRBEUF
HITES)

(b) AEBUEMKBXIMRAREER
ZIEERE - EXERE - EEXERK
2 RE ABRH BT Em
R/ERBERER RaBR®
H-EFSUBTARAERNEA
THAKRESAREERER (RTE
W) AE 2 B BRI B8 A i 51 81
RERBER &

(0 EE2B8TRECKIBEAR/XN
SENKREER (RFIBER) FH
BRAZEMRAL -

R-ZE—NF=A=+—H A7
BRI & S R T 2 B AR
430,000,000 (=& — £ &F
17,300,000) ' A A A7 BB #&17
A EAI1.5% (ZF—+F:09%) °

BiEstE T RE 2 BRERDESE
A #8H193,941,4100% © KL AR
BRETIEIRAQRGTEEITRA
210%  HEEERBREE—FHE
BRI BIEBRES  TEE R
s ARITEZ BRERITER TR
ZRMDEE HEE FRAEMRER
AARBTREBITRAZ30%A5E
PR o

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAF

The Company by shareholders’ resolutions passed at
the special general meeting held on 10 May 2010
adopted a share option scheme which shall be valid
and effective until 8 May 2020 (the “Option
Scheme”).

The purpose of the Option Scheme is to recognise
the commitments and contributions of the following
eligible participants by granting options to them as
incentives or rewards:

(a) any employee or director (including executive
director, non-executive director and
independent non-executive director) of any
member of the Group or any entity in which
any member of the Group holds an equity
interest (the “Invested Entity”);

(b) any advisor, consultant, professional, agent,
contractor, customer, provider of goods and/or
services, business or joint-venture partner of
any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity whom the Board in its sole discretion
considers eligible for the Option Scheme on the
basis of his or her contribution to the Group or
the Invested Entity (as the case may be); and

(c) any person whom the Board in its sole
discretion considers has contributed or will
contribute to the Group or to the Invested
Entity (as the case may be).

At 31 March 2018, the Company had 30,000,000
(2017: 17,300,000) share options outstanding
under the Option Scheme, which represented
approximately 1.5% (2017: 0.9%) of the shares of
the Company in issue at that date.

The total number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Option Scheme
shall not in aggregate exceed 193,941,410 shares
(approximately 10% of the issued share capital of
the Company at the time the Option Scheme was
established) unless further shareholders’ approval
has been obtained. The overall limit in the number
of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Option Scheme shall not exceed 30% of
the shares of the Company in issue from time to
time.

2017/18 Annual Report %R
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18. B R A&l (&)

HE2—_Z— \F=A=1+—H L% For the year ended 31 March 2018

18. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

BIBFBRETE SRAARARZE
MESR - EFBITRABREBRESN
BESAZEMBEALRDERE
B BEUSARRIATEBYIERITE
EHE o B AR A M E Z RS
VHATESRSARES G2 EMBE
ATE-—TRHBERE 2812
ERABEAEBEA T ERNGERZ
T BRI TR TR IT G T &
TZARRARG  EFFBBEAARE
BT 20.1% @ BB H UK
BE5T 5 2 # {8 %5,000,0007% 7T -
B ABES AR AR 2 B4 A& (A
NE|Z BN LB RERZEK)
75 A] i — AR B AR o

X EMEMAR  RIFBBRETE
REM22EAMBAS2RBERERK
HERZBRERE (BREETER
RARTTRE Z B AHE)  METTERA
BIRBTETZRNDES - TR
BARBE BTN Z1% - £ #
— R BBBL ER 2 BAE - ZAE
SREME MRF2EERAKE
AL ABBHERE -

REBERETIRE ZERERABR
HEEIAANEEPAER - K
BREHASNRE BREZITE
BERAGIRAUT=Eh2H&5%E
(WEREEHEREZA - HaiA@Ee
EHARRABMDEM IS B RER
P2 WK E : (DR REHE A (R
REXB)ARRBROEBZHEH
WERHRBETE - KA QR
A EE °

2017/18 Annual Report %

Pursuant to the Option Scheme, each grant of
options to any director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or any of
their respective associates, must be approved by all
independent non-executive directors of the
Company. Where any grant of options to a
substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company, or any of
their respective associates, would result in the
shares of the Company issued and to be issued
upon exercise of all options already granted or to
be granted to such person in the 12-month period
representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the shares
of the Company in issue and having an aggregate
value, based on the closing price of the shares, in
excess of HK$5,000,000, such further grant of
options must be approved by the shareholders with
the connected persons of the Company abstaining
from voting in favour.

Subject to the aforesaid, pursuant to the Option
Scheme, the total number of shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of the options granted and
to be granted to each participant (including both
exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period must not exceed 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue. Any further grant of options in
excess of the limit shall be subject to the
shareholders’ approval with such participant and his
associate abstaining from voting.

Options granted under the Option Scheme must be
accepted in writing within 30 days from the date of
offer. No consideration is payable on grant of
option. The exercise price of the option shares shall
at least be the highest of (i) the average closing
price of the shares of the Company as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of
offer; (ii) the closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
guotations sheet on the date of offer, which shall
be a business day; and (iii) the nominal value of the
shares of the Company.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BMNEREEERAF
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HE-_T—\F=H=+—HILFZ For the year ended 31 March 2018

18. IR =T &l ()

18. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

RIBBBERTE - &
REMREFMBSBEBRT - REBK
BT EAR2EE Rtz
BAEKEMNKRREEHNATHER
BRI REA

RIR B BT 8

ALk -

REBBEEF SR D < BRE &
BHBUERR T N\F=A=+—
B -—ZE—tF=A=t—HZHEHR

RETT {6 HL B RCHE -

ARXATREFS
1 E N A 2 R B A 1T 6 R
- EHHRBAFEETF (ARY
REREETFHARE - REEH

SRYAIATT

ZE- N

Pursuant to the Option Scheme, a share option may
be granted to any participant by the Board at its
absolute discretion and subject to any conditions as
it may think fit. Save for this, there is neither any
performance targets that need to be achieved by

the grantee nor any minimum period for which a
share option must be held before a share option
can be exercised.

Pursuant to the Option Scheme, a share option may
be exercised by the grantee at any time during a
period determined and notified by the Board of
Directors provided that such period shall be not

more than 10 years commencing from the date of
grant and expiring on the last business day of such

10-year period.

Details of movements in the share options granted
under the Option Scheme and the balances at 31
March 2018 and 31 March 2017 are set out below:

ol
ERELR
Number of share options
RB-tf RERER R-F-NF
BA-A RER 388 =A=1-8
BRTEE AT kb Lapsed/ MATE
Exercise  Outstanding Granted expired  Outstanding
pa% RiiAH ks price as at during during asat
Participants Date of grant Exercisable period per share 142017 the year theyear 3132018
A
HKS
g% “E-%f ZF--FRfTHAE
RATAA ZE-tERATIA
Directors 19.5.2010 19.5.2011-18.5.2017 0420 17,300,000 - (17,300,000) -
8% ZEtE ZEtETATZRE
tB-fzH “ECRETACTZAMR)
Directors 23.10.2017 23.10.2017 - 22.10.2025 (note) 0.177 - 30,000,000 - 30,000,000
TREE(E
Exercisable at the end of the year 17,300,000 9,000,000

86 G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAF
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18. B R A&l (&)

HE2—_Z— \F=A=1+—H L% For the year ended 31 March 2018

18. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

EREYR
Number of share options
RZB-X%¥ RERXM R-B-LF
i mA-H RER 38 =A=t-A
BRAHEE HRITE B Lapsed/ HRITE
Exercise  Outstanding Granted expired  Outstanding
$8% RiLAH e price as at during during as at
Participants  Date of grant Exercisable period per s};gr_e 1.4.2016 the year the year 31.3.2017
BT
HK$
EZ ~“Z-% ZE-—%RATHRE 0420 27,300,000 - (10,000,000) 17,300,000
LATNR “E—+ERATNR
Directors 19.5.2010 19.5.2011 - 18.5.2017
RERITHR 27,300,000 17,300,000
Exercisable at the end of the year
Biit: R-E—+tF+A-+=HKLEE Note:  The total estimated fair value at the date of grant of

BEZERAZBRESATER
2,906,000/ 7T - R #X i B B3R —
T—+tH&+A-+=BAREEN
BIEREAERZ0% - B EAS
BHB0% R _E—\F+A=Z+=
BRE  EH40%ER_FT—NF
TAZ+=BHE - EBERLAH
AN R 7] 2 B& £ W i (8 R0.1777%8
=

RFEDERMO R -—FRATMEE

BEAFHE BZEXN@AZEBEN
B

I RE

1TE(E

TR IR

T FH

TR
R 8
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the share options on 23 October 2017 was
HK$2,906,000. 30% of total number of the share
options vested immediately on the date of grant, 23
October 2017. 30% of the total number of the share
options shall be vested on 23 October 2018 and the
remaining 40% shall be vested on 23 October 2019.

The closing price of the Company’s share

immediately before the date of grant was HK$0.177.

The fair value was calculated using the Binomial
Option pricing model. The inputs into the model

were as follows:

Weighted average share price
Exercise price

Expected volatility

Expected life

Risk-free rate

Expected dividend yield

—E-+F

2017

HK$0.177
HK$0.177
66.99%

8 years
1.63%
0.00%

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BMNEREEERAF
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BE_T-/\F=A=

18. IR =T &l ()

—H |F4E € For the year ended 31 March 2018

18. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

AEBEHRBEE-_ZTE—N\NF=A
=+ ALEFEARRREHAERRE
#E321,470,00078 7T MA B 10 & E B A9
XA REBEE-_ZET—+F=A
T+ BUEFEYERRHAS - EM
FHETEERE REBEZE=_Z—AN\
F=RA=+—H1FERN17,300,000
A% (ZZ—+ 4% : 10,000,0000% ) B A%
BEEXK REBEE-_ZT—N\F=A
=+—HI-FE B #130,000,00015
ERE REEz_Z—+tF=A
=t BULEFEMERLERE-

19. EXHEZTH

The Group recognised HK$1,470,000 share-based
payments expense in relation to share options
granted by the Company during the year ended 31
March 2018. No expense was recognised during the
year ended 31 March 2017. No share options were
exercised for both years. 17,300,000 (2017:
10,000,000) share options lapsed during the year
ended 31 March 2018. 30,000,000 share options
were granted during the year ended 31 March
2018. No share options were granted during the
year ended 31 March 2017.

19. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

REBEREBA
RBEMEEER - AEBR A
B 2 42 & 49 H B W) 2 T R R 2R ZR

The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments

Ee&EHRSHT : under non-cancellable operating leases for premises
which fall due as follows:

—E-NF —E—tF

2018 2017

FERT FHT

HK$'000 HK$'000

—F R Within one year 18,284 12,555
F_FEFREF In the second to fifth year inclusive

(BEREEEMF) 30,176 -

48,460 12,555

BEHEHAYTERREAEEME
HAE EERETIBESAINZA
- AHOFHU—ZEZ=ZFABER (=
T—+F: —FE=F) -

EERESRED 8 F1E514,950,00058 7T (=
Z — 44 : 1,680,000/ 7T ) WP E23
Fritz BB Ew:E T HRIEZSRE -

88 G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAF

Operating lease payments mainly represent rental
payable by the Group for its office, restaurants and
staff accommodation. Leases are negotiated for an
average term of one to three years (2017: one to
three years).

Included in the amount committed is
HK$14,950,000 (2017: HK$1,680,000) being
commitment with related parties in relation to
rental agreements as explained in note 23.
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20. RIRE RS

HE2—_Z— \F=A=1+—H L% For the year ended 31 March 2018

20. RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS

21.

AEBEERERFIERTEES (8
BEE) /AKRERTEZEREE
BEREERMRNENGTE -

BiEwESTE EEABHEAFHZ
S%RBIEERRERR ABKFE I
REEINMER - EEZTAHKE
BEEAHE 2SR ERE ABIKFE
(MaFEHIK]) o B BRFM655R
KBRS TE2RETIEE N A
ZEREEEIMEH-IKZ100% °

AEBERBFTERAZEZHARFE
44 % 51,074,000 T (2 —+
£ 1,124,000 7T) ©

ExRERER

The Group has a retirement benefits scheme under
the mandatory provident fund scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) for all eligible employees of the Group in
Hong Kong.

Under the MPF Scheme, the employees are required
to contribute 5% of their monthly salaries up to
maximum relevant income levels and they can
choose to make additional contributions. The
employer’s monthly contributions are calculated at
5% of the employee’s monthly salaries up to a
maximum relevant income level (“mandatory
contributions”). The employees are entitled to
100% of the employer’'s mandatory contributions
upon their retirement at the age of 65, death or
total incapacity.

Total employers’ contributions of the Group for the
year recognised in profit or loss amounted to

HK$1,074,000 (2017: HK$1,124,000).

21. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

AEEEREAES  REBERER
BT 35 2 PR I 1 TR
FEAZERERECYE AB2E
5 AR 3R 2 [E1 95 - 7 o B 9 9 5
R RS T -

REBEARBEBEARBBRAREE
AR (BREBETRA  #H#
K RFTEE) -

ARRzEEFE@EHRIERRE -
R Bl THRESKANSREEZ
HEER REEFZEZZ  A5KHE
75335 3B 1T ¥ IR N O B B ) A e 37T
MERSABEENREGERR T HARERE
BRI o
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The Group manages its capital to ensure that
entities in the Group will be able to continue as a
going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged in both years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
issued share capital, reserves and accumulated
losses.

The directors of the Company review the capital
structure on a periodic basis. As part of this review,
the directors consider the cost of capital and the
risks associated with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through new
share issues and share buy-backs as well as the
issue of new debt or the redemption of existing
debt.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BMNEREEERAF
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HE-_T—\F=H=+—HILFZ For the year ended 31 March 2018

22. T A

22. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

SRITESHE Categories of financial instruments
—ZE-N\E —ET—tF
2018 2017
FET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
TREE Financial assets
AHEERE Available-for-sale investments 2,750 4,507
B % e W IR Loans and receivables
(BREE2 K (including cash and
ReEEIER) cash equivalents) 89,360 94,946
TRBE Financial liabilities
B EA AR Amortised cost 2,769 2,377
BERERBEEEBERBE Financial risk management objectives and

AEEZFESRTAGFEAIHLEE
RE B LREMEKKE 2HER
RITER - EHRTHENR  RITER
AR EHRENFA - ZFE2@MT
AZHBEREBZMENEE - &
ZEeRm T AR ERBEMSR
(oM MEREMBERRR) - E
ERBETEERR - DR EZE
Rz BRI AT - EEEBBE
BRERZSAR UEFREE 2HE
T BE TE B K2 B U B B

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAF

policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
available-for-sale investments, trade and other
receivables, pledged bank deposits, short-term bank
deposits, bank balances and cash and trade
payables. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments include market risk
(foreign currency risk, interest rate risk and other
price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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22. BT H (&)

BHE-_ZT—N\F=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2018

22. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

MEERERERRIE (H)

% E

S JE

AREEAE T HADRKFIR - FEHR
TlERRBITESR MRS - BIATHEE
BRI EMEREIE - AEER
By 0 S SMNE SRR - B TIREINE
R BEEESTEYEREHEAR
WHEAHEEZBEIPEAINERR

AEBUINEINEZEREERER
BERKERHZEEENT :

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk

Foreign currency risk

The Group has certain other receivables, short-term
bank deposits and bank balances and cash that are
denominated in foreign currencies other than its
functional currency. The Group currently does not
have a foreign currency hedging policy. In order to
mitigate the foreign currency risk, management
closely monitors such risk and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and
monetary liabilities at the reporting date are as
follows:

EE =
Assets Liabilities
ZE-N\§ —F—+tF ZBE-Nf —T—F
2018 2017 2018 2017
ThER THT TER TET
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000

ARE(TARE]) Renminbi (“RMB") 2,581 - = =
BUHE ST Sensitivity analysis

AEBTEEmHETAARBER
KB o TRFAFINASEHETHEAR
BIRS%ZBRE  ERREERE
HIMEE RFEZEIERIREE S -
RESMABREAINEIEZERIE
B R FRE RINEERY% &
ftif - THRBERAREETLAR
I ESRH BRER 28
TRARKEES% HEXKS
MRERTAZEZE MATSES
EIEH -
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The Group is mainly exposed to fluctuations in
exchange rates of HK$ against RMB. The following
table details the Group's sensitivity to a 5% increase
and decrease in HK$ against RMB which represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and adjusts
their translation at the year end for a 5% change in
foreign currency rates. A negative number below
indicates an increase in post-tax loss where HK$
strengthen 5% against RMB. For a 5% weakening
of HK$ against RMB, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the loss, and the amounts
below would be positive.
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—ZE—)\F=H=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2018

TR I H (E)

22. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAF

MEERERERRIE(H)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

w5 E B (4E) Market risk (Continued)
BUKE ST (&) Sensitivity analysis (Continued)
ge
Impact
—E-N\E —EF—+F
2018 2017
TER THET
HK$’000 HK$'000
TkE-3 k= Wde: Increase in post-tax loss
AR RMB (129) -

EEERR HRFRZABRTER
BREF A 2 B - B SURRE TR BE
RRBEINERK -

T
RZZE-N\F=ZA=1+—H £&HE
BenEMNXEREEZREFBHHNE
RITEESR (RME15) - AEBEEERE
FBUERERANERERIZE - K&
By ARE—EEAH PR BWOE
FE EERUPEANEER B
BERA/REBRITERL ARG XE
EAMERERAETE HRITHEHRZ
MEREEDEE - PTIALIRA IR M}
BT E L BURED

AEBEERRRITERREHRTE
RZRFENZMNERABRHATZE (R
BIEE15) o AR E I & R EMITE
BHEHRNXRER R EEES
EY)ERENER BRI FAREAEKRM
REREELEES 21EHE

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange
risk as the year end exposure does not reflect the
exposure during the year.

Interest rate risk

At 31 March 2018, the Group is exposed to cash
flow interest rate risk relating primarily to
variable-rate bank balances (see note 15).
Management of the Group monitors the related
interest rate risk exposure closely. The Group does
not have a formal hedging policy in place but will
consider hedging significant interest rate risk
exposure should the need arise. Management
considers that the Group has insignificant interest
rate risk exposure on bank balances as the
fluctuation on interest rates on bank balances is
minimal. Thus, no sensitivity analysis has been
presented.

The Group is also exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to pledged bank deposits and
short-term bank deposits (see note 15). The Group
has not used any derivative contracts to hedge its
exposure to such interest rate risk; however,
management monitors interest rate exposure and
will consider other necessary action when significant
interest rate exposure is anticipated.
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BHE-_ZT—N\F=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2018

22. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

MEERERERRIE (H)

% m e ()
H M E1E R
AEBITERFERENRLTERERE

BEMAAZBRERES 2 EBRERE

EEEEBER —EYETRER R
@iﬁ%fz&’ﬁiﬁ/f\?}(ﬁ%ﬂﬁ%’ﬁ}ﬁ
cAREEZBMENMESFERER T
g%qﬂﬁéiﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁxﬁﬁ#&{Eth&ﬁ
7 o AN EEEAE* 2 (B 18 & B

VTEEEEFERLEDAR -

B E 3T

AT Z2BEED IR ERIRE #RE
HEARENEFMAAXT ZERER
MERE °

MRERBEEERESEIS% R_Z
—N\EF=ZA=+—HIEEzEME
B SR 4229,0008 L (—Z T —+
& Hfh 2 HEEE R 2 180,000%8
JT) °

IMREBREEREEBISH R_F
—N\F=ZA=+—BULEFEZ2HEE
B 51 229,000 T (=T — £ F ¢
Fi1% B 18 #53% h0180,000%8 7T ) °

MREHFSHIS%  HE-ZT—\F
“A=T—HIEZREBERRLD
184,000 T (ZE—+F : b2 mE
&5 18 #5 S5l 496,000 7T ) ©

MBEHFRBEIS%  BE-ZE—N\F
ZA=+—H Lz %&EEEE N
184,000 L (ZZE — £ 4F : HIEEE
#5 1% 11496,00078 7T) °

TEERS HRFERZARIL TR
B%iWZJ_L”‘\ At - BRE R
ERREBEEZEREAR -
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Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Other price risks

The Group is exposed to equity and debt security
price risks mainly through its investments in listed
equity and debt securities.

Management manages this exposure by maintaining
a portfolio of investments with different risk and
return profiles. The Group’s equity and debt security
price risks are mainly concentrated on equity and
debt securities quoted in the Stock Exchange. In
addition, management also monitors the price risk
and will consider hedging the risk exposure should
the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to equity and debt security
price risks at the end of the reporting period.

If equity prices had been 15% higher, other
comprehensive expense for the year ended 31
March 2018 would decrease by HK$229,000 (2017:
other comprehensive expense would decrease by
HK$180,000).

If equity prices had been 15% lower, post-tax loss
for the year ended 31 March 2018 would increase
by HK$229,000 (2017: post-tax loss would increase
by HK$180,000).

If debt security prices had been 15% higher,
post-tax loss for the year ended 31 March 2018
would decrease by HK$184,000 (2017: other
comprehensive expense would decrease by
HK$496,000).

If debt security prices had been 15% lower, post-tax
loss for the year ended 31 March 2018 would
increase by HK$184,000 (2017: post-tax loss would
increase by HK$496,000).

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analyses are
unrepresentative of the inherent other price risk as the year
end exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BMNEREEERAF

93



T A B IS ERR MY EE
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_T—\F=H=+—HILFZ For the year ended 31 March 2018

22. TR T B (&) 22. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

MEERERERRIE(H)

EEmME
RZFE-NF=ZA=1t—8 " HEAXR
FEHFREBTRENETIEALSE
ERRHEceRREMERAEEESE
MBERNRAEERRASERES
MBERRARABRNZREERZRE
ENREE -

AR RERFIEE B2 EERR
AEBZEREESRBERERARY
ZEBARBEE I EEES
REEHEEE BRI ERNER 2 A
Yl & 58 - AR W E 2z 2 R
RABEEBEEE At XRAE
ERRAKREZEERRE XERE
Do REEZRYWHRIBY BEAESR
ZEERR REEBREDHRE TR
AfE e

KEDEMBITER  BHRITER
ERTHEBZEERRER  REAR
BT RBERERFRARBTIERS
ERAE BB NIRRT - ARE
ZROTBEBRLEBEREP ZEERE
2 RERRE MBI TEEE -

BRI BT $%12 &2 157 B2 58 5 B o] 4
HEEBRERERRITFERZESD
SE R ASN - ARG E I A E A
EXRGEFZEERR -
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Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk

As at 31 March 2018, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial
loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties and financial
guarantees provided by the Group is arising from
the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk in relation to
trade receivables, management of the Group will
only advance credit to debtors with good credit
history. In addition, the management reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual debt at the
end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced. The Group has no significant
concentration of credit risk on its trade receivables
with exposure spreading over a number of
counterparties.

The credit risk in relation to pledged bank deposits,
short-term bank deposits and bank balances is
limited because the majority of the counterparties
are financial institutions and banks with high
credit-ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies. The Group has no significant
concentration of credit risk on its bank balances
with exposure spreading over a number of
counterparties.

Other than concentration of credit risk on
available-for-sale debt investments and short-term
bank deposits disclosed in notes 12 and 15,
respectively, the Group does not have any other
significant concentration of credit risk.

2017/18 Annual Report %R



AREMIBHRRMEE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

22. ©E T E (&)
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22. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

MEERERERRIE (H)

B 14 B
RERRBERRE  AEBSEE
FEFRS MRS FEEE RN ER

ERARTHEMAAEEEE Y KT o

3R IR 155 T AR KR X AT R] B RO R

SEFETEERE T ﬂﬁ’ﬂa;&
IR TRODBEBEARE %EZ;KIL\
BRES® F‘ﬁgﬂijﬁﬁﬁiﬁiﬁimZE’i

B3 i«

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash

equivalents deemed adequate by management to
finance the Group’s operations.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities based on the agreed repayment terms. The
table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of non-interest bearing
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on
which the Group can be required to pay.

MBI R Liquidity tables
RERE
BER
SPME  KEREE
Repayable TREHE
on demand Total BREE
or less than undiscounted Carrying
1 year cash flows amount
THERT TER TER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZF—-N\F=A=+—H At 31 March 2018
FITESHER Non-derivative financial liabilities
O ANE S Trade payables 2,769 2,769 2,769
RZZ—tF=A=+—H At 31 March 2017
ETELRERE Non-derivative financial liabilities
B SR Trade payables 2,377 2,377 2,377
CHEERSHEREZAFE Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities

TREENERABZA
THZHEERE

o XBEEMRFKIRFRE KN ERE
tﬁmi’i) HLEMBEENRT R
BB ERAVEDSEMSHM®

g )\{Eﬁﬁﬁﬂ& g

FETIRE

m

N
H

e HiteMEEMERMEEBE(TE
/N

EATATA) > AFENRE
REEBEXNUBRRESREDN
MEE °
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The fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined as follows:

e the fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities with standard terms and conditions
and traded in active liquid markets are
determined with reference to quoted market
bid prices.

e the fair value of other financial assets and
financial liabilities (excluding derivative
instruments) is determined in accordance with
generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis.
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22. £RIT B (#8) 22. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

MEERERERRIE(H)

EHEERTMERZ A FE(F)

AEEEMEEZ A FETEERE
HELAFEFHE

ARE - LOREENBEHAED
FEHE - TRRUEBOTERL
SEMEEATFEZER (FBIRME
{7754 PR B -

SHEE Financial assets
At ERE Available-for-sale investments
BELTREES ~ equity securities listed in
Hong Kong
B LTERES - debt securities listed in
Hong Kong

REMFR  F—F F_REE=
AR 2 TR S A AT 6 % -

ARABEFERL  REAMBAREK
NIZBEHER AR EREENR SR
BEZEMEEERBERR AT
(EREES)

23. BEATHEBRERS 23.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities
(Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured
at fair value at the end of the reporting period. The
following table gives information about how the fair
values of these financial assets are determined (in
particular, the valuation techniques and inputs
used).

NYE HERER
Fair value NYEERA TERAYE
“E-N\Ff —T—+F Fair value  Valuation techniques
2018 2017 hierarchy and key inputs
TER THER
HK$'000  HK$'000
1,525 1,198 % REDGHREAE

Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an
active market

1,225 3,309 F-H ERTEAREAE
Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an

active market

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3
during both years.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost in the consolidated statement of
financial position approximate to their fair value at
the end of the reporting period.

RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND
TRANSACTIONS

(a) Eéﬁm CAREERBHERAR
Al ([EA)DBERETMEESR

Z«%/@Ezﬁﬁ 7N 4F [ 55 Fi) U BR
Z & 33,960,000 T (=&
—+4F : 4,200,000 7T) °c A=
T-NF=A=+—8 HERK
41,080,000/ T 2 a%EéF
m@j%%f ERePh (ZF—
£ 11,050, ooo,%ésna@?%ﬁ‘”
S REMBUWEHRIES) °
—NFER_F— tﬁfﬂf+*
B WREEHEESENTIBF -

(@) During the year, the Group leased certain
properties for its restaurant operations from
Homley Development Limited (“Homley”).
Rentals charged by Homley during the year
amounted to HK$3,960,000 (2017:
HK$4,200,000). At 31 March 2018, rental
deposit of HK$1,080,000 was included in
non-current property rental deposits (2017:
HK$1,050,000 included in trade and other
receivables). At 31 March 2018 and 2017, no
accrued rental was payable to Homley.
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23. RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
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Homley is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Golden
Toy Investments Limited (“Golden Toy”) whose
entire issued share capital is beneficially owned
by a discretionary trust the objects of which
include Mr. Cheng Hop Fai, Ms. Cheng Pak
Ming, Judy, Ms. Cheng Pak Man, Anita and
Ms. Cheng Pak Lai, Lily who are also executive
directors of the Company and beneficial
owners of Kong Fai, the Company’s ultimate
holding company.

During the year, the Group leased an unit of a
residential building from Hover City Industrial
Limited (“Hover City”). Rental charged by
Hover City during the year amounted to
HK$930,000 (2017: HK$936,000). As at 31
March 2018, rental deposit of HK$150,000 was
included in non-current property rental deposits
(2017: HK$156,000 included in trade and other
receivables). At 31 March 2018 and 2017, no
accrued rental was payable to Hover City.

Hover City is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Golden Toy.

During the year, the Group leased an office
from Sky Global Investments Limited (“Sky
Global”). Rentals charged by Sky Global during
the year amounted to HK$1,100,000 (2017:
HK$1,200,000). At 31 March 2018, rental
deposit of HK$240,854 was included in
non-current property rental deposits (2017:
HK$239,937 included in trade and other
receivables). At 31 March 2018 and 2017, no
accrued rental was payable to Sky Global.

Sky Global is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Hover City which in turn is a direct
wholly-owned subsidiary of Golden Toy.

The key management personnel are the
executive directors of the Company. Details of
the remuneration of directors are set out in
note 7.

The remuneration of directors is determined by
the remuneration committee having regard to
the performance of the individuals and market
trends.
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24, T EHBE A A

24. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

ARARZIEMBRARANR -_ZT—N\F
ZA=+—"RAEkZZFE—+tF=H

=T BZFHRBWT:

WEADER

Name of subsidiary
CCC Holdings (BVI) Limited (#/:Z)

CCC Holdings (BVI) Limited (note)

CCC Investments (BVI) Limited
CCC Investments (BVI) Limited

AN ERBRARRA

City Chiu Chow Management &
Consultants Company Limited

A EERRAR

City Chiu Chow Restaurant Limited

Hover City Chiu Chow Restaurant Limited

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAF

GLUTAE 31
Place of
incorporation/
operation

AERAEE/BR

British Virgin Islands
("BVI")/ Hong Kong

ABRAME/FH
BVI/ Hong Kong

30

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

30

Hong Kong

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31
March 2018 and 31 March 2017 are as follows:

KEZRHER/ ARARKERT
BRTRAZEE RxEE 2Ll
Class of shares Proportion of
held/nominal nominal value of
value of issued issued share capital EEEK
share capital ~ held by the Company  Principal activities
ERR 100% RERR
187,325,513 ¢ Investment holding
Ordinary
HK$187,325,513
LRRIER 100% RERR
Ordinary US$1 Investment holding
LRRI005T 100% REEERHE
(ERZEELR000087T) * Provision of
Ordinary HK$100 management services
(Non-voting deferred
HK$10,000)*
EakE 100% il
(R FEEER2000000%7) * Restaurant operations
Ordinary HK$100
(Non-voting deferred
HK$2,000,000)*
E@MRI00BT 100% il
(BREEELR Restaurant operations
6,000,000/ 7C) *
Ordinary HK$100
(Non-voting deferred
HK$6,000,000)*
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24. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

* ERERECEREE AEEREREM
BRASBESREFEMBRREAE K
REERE BEREEERIRRS
HRE R ESER SR © B}1,200,000
A% 8 & B 2 A PR A B T AR B A R
ALTHEEIN HBRFARERS AKX
NAIFEEREE -

Kta# - CCC Holdings (BVI) Limitedf 4 A &)
EREFA - ARAIRAAHMKTE R
Al Z #2519 3B #BCCC Holdings (BVI)
Limited #748

ERFAIAARBEERRIERE
AEEREREECETHERR -
E=RRFAINEBHBRRZERE
GLREILEK

R EHEEER > AR FHEAMW0
B(ZE—tF: o) HEBRKEE
ARHENZWBRF - ZEWBRA
BRI AN AR AE o

P 7 BT B8 1 ] 0 4R 4% 3 B N EAAT B )
HEEFAESETEBES
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* The non-voting deferred shares carry no rights to receive
notice of or to attend or vote at any general meeting
and have no rights to dividends or to participate in any
distribution on winding up. These deferred shares were
indirectly held by the Company except for 1,200,000
deferred shares of Hover City Chiu Chow Restaurant

Limited which were owned by outside parties.

Note: CCC Holdings (BVI) Limited is directly held by the
Company. The Company’s interest in all other
subsidiaries is held through CCC Holdings (BVI)
Limited.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the
Company, which, in the opinion of the directors of
the Company, principally affected the results or
assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company
has ten (2017: nine) other subsidiaries that are not
material to the Group. These subsidiaries are
inactive.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
outstanding at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.
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Financial Summary

BEZ=A=1+—HLLEE
Year ended 31 March

—2-DF ZB-8F —F-AF ZF-+F —F-N\F

2015 2016 2017 2018

TER TER TR T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS$'000

93,742 90,938 88,305 86,926

WA Revenue
BR %% B B 18 Loss before taxation
18 Taxation

(4,713) (9,304) (9,008) (8,945)

ANBIREREMLZ  Loss for the year attributable
FEEE to owners of the Company

(4,713) (9,304) (9,008) (8,945)

EEHERE

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

R=B=+—H
At 31 March

“F-NF —F-5F —F-X%F —F-+%5 “F-N\%

2015 2016 2017 2018

FERT TR TR TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000

123,396 115,318 106,848 100,271
(7,196) (7,518) (7,413) (7,984)

EERE Total assets
BERE Total liabilities
BaEs Total equity

116,200 107,800 99,435 92,287
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